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Lorem ipsum dolor sit amet, consectetur adipiscing elit, sed do eiusmod tempor incididunt
ut labore et dolore magna aliqua.

Ut enim ad minim veniam, quis nostrud exercitation ullamco laboris nisi ut aliquip ex ea
commodo consequat. Duis aute irure dolor in reprehenderit in voluptate velit esse cillum
dolore eu fugiat nulla pariatur. Excepteur sint occaecat cupidatat non proident, sunt in
culpa qui officia deserunt mollit anim id est laborum.

Lorem ipsum dolor sit amet, consectetur adipiscing elit, sed do eiusmod tempor incididunt
ut labore..
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MESSAGE FROM THE CHAIRMAN
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CORE VALUES

GOD-CENTEREDNESS

Places God at the center of all activities and undertakings, and embodies this
in all aspects of social, professional, and personal life.

INTEGRITY

Aims to achieve the highest work performance according to the standards of
RAFI wherein transparency, proper communication and adherence to ethical
procedures are delivered in all transactions.

RESPECT

Maintains respect for all people without prejudice to status as the appreciate,
recognize, and encourage innovations and contributions of other people by
keeping an open mind.

SERVICE

Provides services that create impact to RAFI and the communities we connect
with, by actively giving ideas, innovative solutions and talents.

MIKEL ALBERTO M. ABOITIZ

CHAIRMAN, RAFI MICRO-FINANCE

MESSAGE FROM
THE CHAIRMAN

In its five decades in service, RAFI Microfinance has encountered
countless challenges that threatened to disrupt our operations
and the lives of the people we wished to serve. But over the years,
through focused collective effort, we have always found ways to
emerge from each crisis triumphantly. One of the main things that
fueled us through those tough times was our unwavering need to
serve—to touch lives and shape the future in our own ways.

This sense of service was put to the test last year, when a
pandemic crippled almost every corner of the globe. It was a
time unlike anything we'd ever had to deal with before. That is
why right now, | want to extend my deepest appreciation to
those who stood with RAFI MFI during those difficult times. | am
also filled with gratitude for simply being able to greet you on the
other side of this dark time.

Although we may not be able to predict what will happen in the
future, may we cherish the wonderful moments that we have now
and celebrate the achievements that we have gained so far.

For RAFI MFI in particular, | commend the team for the successful
implementation of several initiatives in response to the COVID-19
pandemic. Even with little time and limited mobility due to the
nationwide lockdowns, you have been able to help through our
products and services, as well as the efforts of our branches and
trust staff.

The prompt realignment of goals and objectives was testament
to just how much we value helping not only our client-
beneficiaries but also our own employees and, above all, the
community as a whole.

We can't rest easy, of course. We are not out of murky waters

just yet, which is why I implore all of you to stay cautious—follow
health and safety protocols, sanitize whenever you can, and most
importantly, look after one another in these unprecedented times.

May your well of hope never run dry. Let us
continue inspiring and guiding each other as
we set our course onward to a new journey.
As for the challenges that the coming years
will bring. always remember, "Bugsay lang
kanunay!”
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MESSAGE FROM THE PRESIDENT
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MESSAGE FROM
THE PRESIDENT

RAFI Microfinance has grown from simply assisting impoverished
homes in the neighborhood to becoming a stable force in the
community. Over the years, we have proven that we are one
strong organization, capable of going above and beyond our
original aim. From making sure that many families maintain

a financially sustainable lifestyle to giving a lifeline to the
communities we serve, we as an organization have reached
countless feats through sheer will and perseverance.

Our collective effort has ensured that no family is left behind.
Those who dream of a better life can now actually take a

step towards it. But no matter how strong and united we have
become, nothing could have prepared us for the challenges that
the year 2020 has brought.

The COVID-19 pandemic put all the plans we initially had for the
year on hold. It didn't only affect us. It also affected countless
other companies, families, and individuals who once had greater
plans for the year ahead. It knew no gender, race, or wealth. Most
importantly, it made people in underprivileged communities suffer
even more. Threats of unemployment plagued these communities.
Even more concerning is the loss of their livelihood and the
financial burdens that the disease has brought.

The world quickly turned from a place rife of opportunities to one
that's cruel and harsh. Amidst the chaos, RAFI MFl wanted to shed
some ray of hope to those who almost lost them.

That's when our Walang Ilwanan Campaign was put into action.

This campaign became the cornerstone that pushed for more
efficient community-outreach project flow. This means that the
process we have for emergency response situations is now faster
and stronger than ever.

More importantly, we wish to help families start anew with their
lives. Although the pandemic has put the world at a standstill, we
wanted to make sure that their lasting effects won't hamper the
spirit and faith of the families we care so much about.

Our customer's success has been the cornerstone by which we
build our projects and campaigns around. That is why for such a
challenging year, it was imperative to come up with projects that
would deal with the present dangers of COVID-19.

All of this would not have been possible without the dedication
of everyone who worked to make these ideas a reality. The entire
RMF team has been unfailingly supportive of all of our initiatives.
The Board of Trustees has been looking forward to the positive
changes that these projects will bring about since day one. It is
also heartening to see how RAFI Microfinance, a program unit
that began with fewer than a hundred clients, has grown to serve
close to half a million clients now.

| have nothing but the deepest gratitude to the nanays (and
tatays) who remained steadfast in their determination to
overcome adversity. They had to go through a gruelling year, but
with tenacity and determination, they were able to find their way
back up again. Inspiring stories of empowered people - this is just
one of the reasons we exist in the first place.

Take solace in the fact that we have changed people’s lives;

this has always been at the heart of who we are. All | ask now is
solidarity for those who have suffered and restlessness for all the
future campaigns we have for those that survived the turbulence
of the COVID-19 pandemic.

For the next step? What we can do next is
look ahead and move onward, together.

DOMINICA B. CHUA

PRESIDENT, RAFI MICRO-FINANCE

MESSAGE FROM
THE COO

Every day, we are confronted with new challenges and
opportunities. However, we always have the option of succumbing
to the former or seizing the latter. But what if that option suddenly
becomes too hard to do?

The year 2020 was full of challenges that threatened to end

not only livelihoods but the lives of many too. The effects of the
COVID-19 pandemic were indeed grim. Loss of jobs, opportunities,
income, and profits - these were just some of the things that
many people and families had to face amidst a global pandemic.

We, at RAFI Microfinance, wanted to make sure that everyone
makes it through the other side of the battle safe and sound. That
is why from our employees and stakeholders to the nanays and
tatays that we serve, we made sure that everyone is getting the
help that they need.

RAFI Microfinance salutes all the families who chose to see
opportunity in the midst of all the adversities they face on a daily
basis, even more so last year. These women and men are not only
bringing about change in their own lives, but they are also at the
forefront of a new generation of empowered entrepreneurs who
proved that they can survive even in the most perilous of times.

When the program first began, we only had a small number of
clients. However, after more than 20 years of tireless efforts to

bring our micro-enterprise initiatives to the most remote towns
and provinces in Visayas, our client base has finally surpassed
300,000 people. Now, we are slowly building up to our goal of

getting 450,000 clients, as we expanded further into Luzon and
Mindanao.

RAFI Microfinance's programs and initiatives aim to touch as
many lives as possible, no matter the adversities that lie ahead.

In the year 2020 alone, we have increased our social impact
significantly. We did this by making sure that no one is left behind;
that we always move forward as one team.

We welcomed more members into our team to help us see our
goals through as the number of people who wanted to rise above
their challenges grew. RAFI Microfinance is now a family of over
2,000 committed and passionate changemakers.

But, beyond numbers and figures, we want to ensure that all of
our efforts and projects remain focused on capacitating those
who have been severely affected by the pandemic. In 2020, we
provided several financial interventions to help micro-enterprises
restart and recapitalize. We released loans that amounted to
over Php 5 Billion of loans . These loans allowed us to actively
engage close to 148,000 clients.

We also established and pilot tested the Small Business Loan
product. Through this, 162 total small business borrowers were
provided with access to financial services. In total, we released up
to P192 Million, with an outstanding loan portfolio of P14.3M. That
staggering amount is surprising given that we had to do all the
implementations in the midst of a pandemic.

We were able to implement programs for our bugsay scholars,
tap community mobile doctors for help, give out relief assistance
and many others. We also channeled efforts in developing Sagip,
a new product that aims to help our client-beneficiaries recover
from the negative impacts of COVID-19. Following this, we soon
launched Tindahan ni Nanay (TNN), an initiative that helped

our clients continue their business operations through online
marketing platforms like Facebook.

We saw exceptional people whose stories inspired and
encouraged countless others. | have nothing but admiration and
gratitude for these people for seizing these opportunities and
turning them into something life-changing.

The RAFI Microfinance family deserves credit for making all of this
possible. Your dedication and commitment have touched not only
the lives of our clients, but also the lives of their families. Prepare
yourself, because this is only the beginning of something even
bigger. As we prepare for the coming years, may we remember to
hold on to our values and continue to grow as one.

JONAR B. DORADO

CHIEF OPERATING OFFICER
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LUZON

7 NEW BRANCHES

9,331 CLIENTS
P38M LOAN PORTFOLIO

47K LIVES POSITIVELY AFFECTED

VISAYAS

21 NEW BRANCHES

‘1.‘ 45,708 ADDITIONAL CLIENTS
1 228K LIVES POSITIVELY AFFECTED

MINDANAO

3 NEW OFFICES

6,909 CLIENTS
P26M LOAN PORTFOLIO
36K LIVES POSITIVELY AFFECTED '
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2019 2020
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Q, MALE 1,436

O FEMALE 564

GENERATION X
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MILLENNIALS
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GENERATION Z
(1996-TBD)
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PROGRAMS

& SERVICES

PRODUCTION LOANS:

MAUSWAGON
I N ST

¥

MP USWAGON'
L 0O A N |

SUPPLEMENTAL LOANS:

Housing Improvement Loan - Loon

HOUSING

IMPROVEMENT

intended to assist members and their
families in improving their houses for them
to have a comfortable living.

Education Loan - aims to help families by
providing them access to finance school-
related expenses such as tuition and other
school fees, school supplies, and gadgets
for educational usage (e.g. tablet, loptop,

EDUCATION
L OAN

smartphone, etc.) and ensuring that clients
and/or their children can go to school
or be able to attend school via virtual
and/or distance learning and finish their
education.

SAGIP (Social Assistance Geared for
Indigent People) Loan - offers solution
to a variety of emergency situations. It

@

SAGIPLOAN

caters to fund clients in cases of health or
calamity related agencies.

MICRO-INSURANCE:

Family Relief Plan - Intends to provide

The Mauswagon Loan is a non-collateral loan (whose loan amount
is based on the cash flow requirement of the applicant) with
embedded risk protection services for credit, life and property
insurance, and burial assistance as well as capital build-up
targeting up-and-coming entrepreneurs who are willing to be a
part of a cohesive group or a center.

S
Kezunayan

Kabuhayan Hog Loan — A special loan for hog raisers offered to new
and existing clients engaged in hog raising business with at least

5 hogs in their business for the following purposes: Construction of

pig pen, purchase of additional piglets, purchase of feeds.

Mauswagon Plus Loan is a facility for micro and smalll entrepreneurs
in rural, semi-urban, and urban areas intending to bridge the
financing gap for their business needs such as fixed asset/
equipment acquisition and working capital, as well as providing
them training to get a solid credit track record and experience
leading to the build-up of their business size necessary for growth.

Maneho Loan - Intended to provide reasonably priced and
inclusive access to appropriate microfinance services to male
clients and non-clients belonging to the transport industry.

reasonably-priced and inclusive access to
appropriate services in case of death of
clients. It aims to provide families funeral
services and financial assistance aid such
that it alleviates the burden the household
carries in time of grief, by proactively
responding to both the non-financial and
financial necessities of the family in the
time of mourning.

PROtecSure Insurance - A property
insurance protecting the family's home in
the event of loss & damage due to fire and
lightning, as well as other fortuitous events.

Kaagabay Insurance - Protects the family
in case of accidents or death. It provides
a 24-hour cash assistance, hospitalization,
education offers solution to a variety of
emergency situations. It caters to fund
clients in cases of health or calamity
related agencies.

Loan Redemption Fund - A mandatory
micro-insurance product which provides
financial coverage to liabilities in the
event of death so liability will no longer be
transferred to the next of kin

FAMILY

RELIEF PLAN

(&)

PR

f\aagabay

————— INSURANCE——

|Loan Redemption Fund

MICRO-
SAVINGS:

Capital Build Up Savings - A savings product
aiming to help clients to develop habit of savings
towards financial security and provide safety net
in case of an emergency. The main intent of which
is for clients to practice savings and to generate
capital fund through their thrift and mandatory
savings, by which they could run their businesses
without any assistance from finance institutions.
Savings can be used as a revolving loan fund which
could be helpful for client self-reliance.

OTHERS:

ZQuikRemit

A money transfer service intended to offer
complementary domestic remittance and money
transfer services to clients and the community
allowing them to send money to their loved ones or
payment to suppliers.
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“‘Sometimes, It is not the
acumen in business that
brings entrepreneurs

to success. More often,
those who master the art
of generosity win the race
ahead of time.”

SECTION TITLE
(SUCCESS STORIES)
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SUCCESS STORIES:

LIFTING OTHERS

ALMA P.

The Covid-19 pandemic has convinced all agri-entrepreneurs to remain resilient more than

ever. Already battling the highest poverty incidence pre-pandemic by 31.6 percent, the

global health crisis has made the situation worse for farmers given the border controls

and limited movement but a seasoned business owner, who has been through the ups and

downs in business, knew one thing - there is no other way but to rise and lift each other.

This has been Alma Padillo's mantra since she decided to dip
her hands in a buy-and-sell business some 20 years ago. This
4L4-year-old woman entrepreneur from Sibonga, Cebu started off
selling three baskets of string beans, tomatoes and cucumbers.
There were birth pains in business and the journey wasn't a walk
in the park, according to Alma. But consistency was her secret.
She's making a small but steady profit. From selling limited kinds of
vegetables, Aima ventured into a piggery business to augment her
income to support her growing business and to meet the everyday
needs of her family. Her hard work eventually paid off which led her
to become a channel of blessing to others.

Alma  supported three farmers by providing them fertilizers
and seedlings. She also put into good use the bio-waste from
her piggery as an organic fertilizer for the farms. The produce
was supplied to Cebu City's wet market in Carbon, and this
arrangement eventually led to the expansion of her vegetable
buy-and-sell business.

Not long after, Aima'’s innate ability to see opportunities led her to
own a stall in Carbon market and later on, a small truck to speed
up the delivery of fresh vegetables from the farm to the market.
Alma’s growing business gave jobs to five regular employees and
three seasonal workers. Her good reputation among workers
and farmers also enabled her to financially support a total of 20
farmers in 2019. She also proactively sought business owners she
could contract as buyers. Until one day, she became a supplier for
George and Cathy Corporation, a renowned fruit and vegetable
wholesaler in Cebu.

More business opportunities continued to open for Alma, landing
her a contract as an exclusive supplier of cucumbers for a
shawarma restaurant. Additionally, Aima also became a vegetable
supplier of Dumanjug Beach Resort as well as in Olango Island and
Danao, Cebu.

PANDEMIC:
A TEST OF FAITH

Alma thought this winning streck in buy-and-sell business could
go on for long without any challenges. Then the life-threatening
Covid-19 pandemic entered the country, which literally put
everything to a stop.

Although vegetables are considered essential goods, Alma's
business was challenged due to border controls and limited travel
movements. Closure of restaurants and other tourism-related
businesses were put on pause, causing a dent to Alma’s list of
clients. But despite the rising cases of Covid-19 in Cebu and their
fear of getting infected by the coronavirus, Aima and her husband
continued to sell and deliver their vegetables to Carbon market to
ensure a continued supply.

As a precautionary measure, they isolated themselves from their
children by sleeping at the pig pens every time they return from the
city. They set aside their fears knowing that God is in control just to
be able to provide food for their family and ensure their partner-
famers and their families of continued livelihood during these trying
times.

Alma's selfless desire

to help the farmers was
known in her community.
Because of their trust and
confidence in Alma, 16 other
farmers approached her and
asked for her support. Alma
willingly responded and
extended a helping hand.

Because of this generous gesture, Alma's partner farmers grew
from 20 to 36. And despite the over inventory of vegetables left
unsold due to limited mobilization, Alma fulfilled her promise of
paying the farmers their full contracted amount. This benefited 144
more people within the farmers' households.

GROWING
STEADFAST

Looking ahead, Alma remains steadfast in growing her
agribusiness. She believes this is the only industry that will keep
everyone's jobs alive because food is a necessity. From piggery
and selling vegetables, Alma eyes to overwhelm the market with
spices one day. In fact, she is currently doing the groundwork
for her upcoming spice production business, which has a big
market demand with high returns. Aima plans to devote her
time in this new venture while looking for a new space in Carbon
market to accommodate more fresh vegetables to sell.

Alma’'s resilience in business amid the crisis is highly
commendable. But what is truly inspiring and worthy of
emulation is her generous heart in helping more people rise
and survive this pandemic. She could have chosen to close
her eyes and secure her family's future but Alma chose not to,
knowing that these will be the same people who will help her
bring her business to greater success.

Indeed, we will truly rise by lifting others.
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SUCCESS STORIES:

THE POWER OF "WFE'

Success is sweetest when it is shared. This was
Lucilla Canete's secret to a non-stop business
growth. Armed with a “can-do" attitude and
a "we" mindset in business, this 34-year-old
micro-entrepreneur proved that business

grows faster when you help others grow.

Lucilla didn't have a business background nor obtained
a college diploma. But what she lacked in education,
she made up for in street smarts and determination.
After all, she has a big family to support.

As if pre-destined to be a successful entrepreneur,
Lucilla made good use of her P2,000 to open a sari-
sari store in Barangay Canaocanao, Tabogon, Cebu in
2005, selling essential goods that are needed in every
home. Not long after, her small venture became the
community's go-to-place for household products until
it morphed into a general merchandise that it is known
today.

This unexpected growth, which was a result of hard
work and determination, enabled Lucilla to share
her success by opening doors of opportunities to
neighbors to become resellers of her beverages. Lucilla
now employs four workers, two of whom are regular
employees. She also hired a senior citizen, who helps
her look after her humble store.

DIVERSIFICATION

After dipping her hands in retail, Lucilla knew there's so much
to explore in business. Taking a leap of faith, she diversified
into hog raising and fattening business. She partnered with
five members of RAFI Micro Finance Inc. (RMF) and three other
neighbors to run the newfound venture. She also engaged her
retail employees to learn agribusiness.

In 2018, Lucilla invested in poultry business, working with 12 egg
resellers and tapping fellow RMF clients and seven others as
direct buyers. To help her run the poultry operations, she hired
six regular employees and two seasonal staff.

All of Lucilla's businesses were performing well, each providing
steady income and jobs to people that depended on it, until
the Covid-19 pandemic entered the Philippine shore and had
since been wreaking havoc to all industries —including retail
and agribusiness.

But having gone through life's difficulties, Lucilla knew this storm
will soon pass through. Instead of losing hope, Lucilla looked
at the pandemic as an opportunity to provide more jobs and
open business opportunities.

Amid the mobility restrictions, lockdowns, loss of jobs and store
closures caused by the pandemic, Lucilla was still able to cast
a ray of hope by providing the community and RMF group
members an opportunity to earn money through her different
micro businesses, primarily as resellers.

By God's grace she was able to retain all her salaried staff
without any pay cuts during a gloomy business environment
where almost all businesses have streamlined their operations
and cut back on expenses including salaries.

And Lucilla didn't stop there for she knew she is in a better
position now to be actively helping more people during this
crisis. She involved herself in relief efforts to cushion the impact
of the pandemic to the community. Lucilla donated rice to 20
families in her locality. She also extended financial support to a
scholar to help him complete his academic modules as well as
to poor church members.

Lucilla also initiated a donation drive through her social media
account which raised P120,000 to help provide essential goods
as supplemental assistance to poor families in her barangay.

Because of her active community support and genuine
concern for the welfare of others, Lucilla was designated as
the focal person for the Refurbishment of the Health Center
for Isolation funded by the Department of Social Welfare and
Development- Kalahi.

MOVING FORWARD

With the local economy gradually rising up from that instant drop,
Lucilla barred that she has big plans for her businesses. This year,
she plans to scale up her general merchandise store by expanding
to a new location along the Poblacion Highway to gain better
visibility.

She also intends to attract and deploy more resellers, and provide
credit access to small vendors to help them recover and finance
their businesses.

In her hog raising/fattening business, she eyes to increase the
number of sows from four (4) to twenty (20), and increase fattening
from sixty (60) piglets to 100. She also plans to buy another boar.

For her newly opened poultry business, Lucilla want to expand the
lot area to accommodate more chickens. She plans to double the
heads from the current 540 and become a direct supplier of eggs
in the municipal public market.

Lucilla’s plan to expand her business portfolio will continue. She
plans to enter the water refilling business and invest in a fishing
boat moving forward.

But in order to achieve these, she is resolved to immerse herself
in trainings that will give her the opportunity to explore new
techniques and strategies and deepen her business management
skills to further sustain the businesses she had started and the new
ones that she will enter into.

From a meager capital of P2,000, coupled by hard work, prayer
and a generous heart, Lucilla’s life had been transformed. She
became an empowered and grounded entrepreneur.

And as she worked hard towards achieving her goals, she did not
leave anyone behind. She brought with her, her family and the
community, whose lives she touched. For Lucilla, success is meant
to be shared. And how she navigated her business during these
uncertain times powerfully reflects what the power of a “can-do”

attitude and mindset can do.
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WINNING THE RACE

SUCCESS STORIES:

RUBY
ANUEL

Sometimes, it is not the acumen in business that brings entrepreneurs to success. More

often, those who master the art of generosity win the race ahead of time. Fifty-year-old,

Ruby Emmanuel is an example of reaping the fruits from the seeds of generosity she planted

in the hearts of people in her community and even to strangers. Her shell craft buy-and-

sell business which she started in 2011, blossomed into a little empire that attracts tourists

here and abroad.

Ruby does not have an impressive diploma from business schools,
nor got herself a crash-course to learn the science of "achieving
success."” What she has is a heart that is willing to empower others,
and help those who are struggling to put food on each meal for
their families.

A resident of Brgy. Tagda, Hinigaran, Negros Occidental, a town
blessed with beautiful capiz and nylon, Ruby joined other residents
to make livelihood out of the resources her home-ground is wealthy
of. Yet, among other men and women who are also making a similar
livelihood, Ruby shines through, not because she is better than the
rest, but her golden heart brought her to success she never even
thought would happen to her.

The shell craft products mark a local tradition and have also
become an attraction for both domestic and international tourists.
This intricate shell craft business is not easy to get into, but Ruby,
one of RAFI MFI assisted micro-entrepreneurs took this not as a
barrier but as an opportunity to be more creative and resourceful.

Together with her husband and her three children, Ruby worked
her way up in the business, while doing some other jobs during the
day. Not long after she started the home-based business in 2011,
she gained the courage to focus on the business now supported
by the entire family. Consequently, she became her own boss.

In 2016, she expanded her business into shell craft and fiber
lamination. Ruby thought of this as a way for her to not only earn
but also help promote her town's pride—the unique and beautifully
designed shell crafts.

ACTIVE MICRO-
ENTREPRENEUR

Charting her way to inspire and be able to give more, Ruby managed to
squeeze in her busy schedule to attend upscaling sessions particularly
those facilitated by the Department of Trade and Industry (DTI). This all the
more empowered her to be an activist for change, at least in her inner circle
of community women.

Her visibility as an active micro entrepreneur in her village got the attention
of the local government unit (LGU) and she successfully inked a partnership
deal with  municipality of Hinigaran, which opened up more opportunities
for her to sell her products to more individuals—locals and foreign tourists
alike.

With help from the DTl and the LGU, Ruby found business partners who
buy her handicrafts in bulk and showcase them in private sector resorts,
government facilities, as well as in schools.

Her initial crowning glory is seeing her products installed at the Malacafiang
Palace, a fulfillment of a dream she never had. The sweeping fame led her
to wider doors of opportunity, this time she enters the gateway to the
global market.

In her speaking engagements as resource speaker for numerous trainings,
such as Shell Craft Making and Workshops, Trade Fairs and Exhibits,
and Technical Education and Skills Development Authority trainings,
Ruby is generous in sharing herself and her not-so-easy journey as a
‘Nanaypreneur'.

Because success is meant to be shared, Ruby was chosen as one of the
VIP resource speakers of RAFI MFI's client trainings in 2019. By giving herself
a little more than the ordinary, she can be facing a danger in molding her
future competitors but her courage to share goes beyond the probable
pitfall. Her heart knows no boundaries when it comes to paying forward.

With enough savings from the business and sideline income as a resource

person, she continues to spread and strengthen her wings by acquiring
sophisticated equipment and machinery to achieve cost efficiency and at
the same time improving her products through innovations to be at par
with global brands.

TRUE WINNER

As if her hands are not full enough from family, business

and mentoring activities, Ruby is making sure that she
allots time to capacitate other fellow entrepreneurs,
initiote feeding programs every December, and
provide free shell craft training workshop for students.

Every month of April, Ruby offers summer jobs to
deserving students in her community. She also gives
off seasonal jobs for ten (10) unemployed people every
month of August.

Today, Ruby employs fifteen (15) regular workers, eleven
(M) from her buy-and-sell and shell craft and four (4)
from her fiber lamination business. This includes her
supportive husband and some helping hands from her
children.

Without question, this
inspiring Nanayprenuer
is a true winner. The
race still continues—in
competition, market
innovation, but she had
already been marked
as a winner to the
hearts of people she
touched along the way.
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“‘Her share to experiencing
a miracle came to life
when RAFI MFI offered

a hand to help her get up
and overcome the greatest
testing of her courage and
dream to succeed.”

SECTION TITLE
(MEET THE HEROES)

25



MEET THE HEROES BEHIND THE VOICES

N
o

MEET THE HEROES

BEHIND THE VOICES

JOSEPHINE
DE LARA

WISH UPON
A STORE

Josephine De Lara's world spiraled down when her
small, yet thriving baking business suffered the brunt
of COVID-19 outbreck in the early part of 2020. She
could only wish to continue her store albeit the hard
lockdowns, suspension of events and even less
celebrations.

But almost instantaneously, her desire was heard, and
she was able to turn her shattered world around when
the opportunity of online store came her way.

Josephine, 54, is the owner of a promising home-based
baking business, known for her delectable and pretty
celebration goodies, such as cakes and pastries.

One of Rafi Microfinance (RAFI MFI) success story
clients, certainly, RAFI MFI's trust staff did not leave her
alone wallowing her distress during the health crisis,
but walked her through and let her ride along the
ravaging waters stirred by the pandemic.

Through RMF's Tindahan ni Nanay (TNN), the online
store for RMF's clients' products, Josephine was able
to see her wish came true—a store amid lockdown. She
started posting photos of her delicious yet affordable
cakes, wishing to connect with resellers. Her entry
to online store saved her from the brink of business
closure and her online store continuous to encourage
customers to treat themselves with some sweet
comfort food and celebrate life, nevertheless.

Opening a store in the online highway is something
new for Josephine, she thought she could never catch
up with doing business in a new and strange way.

WORD-OF-MOUTH

This courageous woman pushed herself to earn extra while working an 8-5 job
in a sales company, to feed her extended family.

Apart from her own children, Josephine took the responsibility of taking care
of her late sister's children, a decision she took without doubt although her
earning was not even enough to give a comfortable life for her own family.

She started to bake cakes and pastries to earn extra and sold them to friends,
and eventually to her children's activities in school.

The powerful word-of-mouth brought her sideline business to more orders, until
she decided to quit her office job and focus on the business.

Josephine's cakes and pastries venture became an entire family affair. In 2012,
her husband joined in and together they worked to not just invest small savings
to buy equipment, but to make themselves updated and equipped with the
baking business. They both worked proactively by hopping from one office to
another.

Attending trainings and workshops helped Josephine to elevate her business
a notch higher, while the word-of-mouth advertising worked wonders to her
business.

One day, Josephine found herself in the lobby of the Ramon Aboitiz Foundation,
Inc, and learned about one of its programs that support small businesses and
micro-entrepreneurs, RAFI Micro Finance Inc. She followed her gut to hand in
an application, crossing fingers she could push her business some more with
added capitalization.

Before long, Josephine became RMF's valued client. The capital she borrowed
from RMF empowered the business to compete with the established names
in the baking industry. From then on, she and her husband had one dream,
to open a big store and carve Josephine's name in Cebu's specialty baking
Sector. But this dream spiraled down when the pandemic hit. As everything
ceased, so did their business and their sole livelihood. What was left was their
courage and constant wish to continue baking and doing business.

From word-of-mouth, the pandemic opened up wider opportunities for
Josephine to promote her business to broader digital crowd. Her wish just
came true—opening a store in a digital highway.

She discovered that even when faced with uncertainties and threatening health
environment, people still continue to celebrate life and what is a celebration
without cakes and something sweet to lighten the otherwise somber times?
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MEET THE HEROES

BEHIND THE VOICES:

LORENA
SOLLANO

UNLOCKING
OPPORTUNITIES

The gardening craze dubbed “plant-demic” has
brought hope to the Sollano family whose rattan
business was severely affected by the Covid-19
pandemic.

As people found joy in gardening while locked in their
homes, Lorena Sollano's rattan business was given a
‘second chance" at life when all other businesses had
difficulty reopening, worse staying afloat. Looking
back, the 50-year-old Nanay entrepreneur in Sogod,
Cebu thought she would lose the business she built
over the years and will never recover.

“| was really hopeless,” she says, recalling at how the
pandemic slowly robbed them of their livelihood she
held dearly since 2013, when she and husband Tatay
Larry pursued rattan furniture making. “The streets
were empty. There were limited travels. Few to no cars
and buses were passing. Our sales were dwindling.
Everything just stopped,” recalls Nanay Lorena, who
at that time was so anxious on where she would get
resources to meet their daily needs.

The lockdown became another hurdle because that
prevented her from looking for alternate sources of
income.

"The pandemic is a test of character. We are used
to working hard to survive but we are not used to be
kept off from working and the lockdowns did that,” she
adds. Looking up to God and praying hard was Nanay
Lorena’s only hope. “Nobody wanted this pandemic to
happen. | just prayed that things will get better sooner.”

Until one day, a regular customer called Nanay
Lorena and sent her designs of planters. At that time,
houselocked Cebuanos were on high, buying and
nurturing plants to relieve stress and boredom while

the world was busy tackling the Covid-19 pandemic.

The handcrafted rattan planters became a hit as demand for
greenery surge and as home and backyard projects suddenly
sparked interest. A single order made by a loyal customer was
followed up by more. Nanay Lorena was able to create a new
customer base. When the restrictions were eased, Nanay Lorena
brought her rattan furniture and planters back at the sidewalks
of the highway. “Sales slowly returned since then." RAFI MFl's
assistance also came quick.

Nanay Lorena was told by RAFI MFI's trust staff that she's already
eligible to apply for another loan. “I borrowed another P15,000 to
buy raw materials for our rattan business. | am grateful that God
heard my prayers. He used RAFI to help me return to business,” she
says.

While the Covid-19 pandemic has created a no-win situation
for many small business owners, Nanay Lorena refused to give in.
Like a newbie, she endured the new "birth pains” that came with
operating under the new normal environment.

For one, she learned to diversify into other potential businesses
such as hog raising. “This will be our other source of income while
we navigate our way back in business,” she shares.

Through the help of her tech-savvy family members, Nanay
Lorena also dipped her hands in social media marketing for the
first time, to attract potential buyers who are always glued on their
smartphones and tablets.

True enough by promoting handcrafted rattan furniture, planters
and other houseware accessories on Facebook, Nanay Lorena’s
business gained new following and traction. She proudly
announced they even shipped rattan products to Ormoc and
Leyte. She also joined the Tindahan Ni Nanay, an online community
group on Facebook for RAFI MFI clients where she also got new
orders from RAFI employees and fellow Nanay entrepreneurs.

For Nanay Lorena, there is no easy way out of this pandemic but
she trusted the process and will continue trusting again - the same
way she did until that one phone call happened. She's forever
grateful to the many hands God used - for RMF, Tindahan Ni Nanay
and that sudden gardening craze they all call "plant-demic.”
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MEET THE HEROES
BEHIND THE VOICES:

GROWTH SPRINGS

This 31-year-old mother of five has a knack for cooking
sweet comfort food she learned from her mother, particularly
bukayo (sweetened grated coconut). And this became her
pride, her source of income, and practically her life.

With a working capital of P5000 she borrowed from RAFI
Microfinance, Nanay Maricrez started her small store in
Tuburan in 2009 with her signature bukayo, along with other
consumer goods. This courageous mother managed to
feed her family along the way, and saw her business grew
despite challenges in between, until the pandemic hit in
2020.

Just like everybody else,
her world crumbled when
she was forced to close
her store and lost the
family's sole livelihood

because of the lockdown.
Nanay Maricrez anchored
her inner strength and
connection to God as her
only security.

Her share to experiencing a miracle came to life when RAFI MFI
offered a hand to help her get up and overcome the greatest
testing of her courage and dream to succeed.

Nanay Maricrez's entry to MFI's "Tindahan Ni Nanay” or TNN, an
online marketplace, served as her vessel to get through the
unforgiving business environment. Here, she saw the other side of
her pandemic journey and was able to see sparks of growth from
the online highway.

"When | posted my bukayo products for the first time in TNN, | was
not expecting anything but | was a bit hopeful that it would click.
And with that one post | started to gain more orders," she recallls.

Her online store in TNN is one of the favorites among consumers.
Needless to say, her market is not anymore confined within her
touristic small town, but she has the world to see her products.

Now that anything local is trendy and fashionable, her miracle
continues and orders grow every single day.

From a little make-shift
bukayo store she started in
a borrowed money, her little
faith brought her to own

a store which never closes

and goes beyond borders.

Nanay Maricrez's small business maybe a casualty of the COVID-19
outbreak, but when she decided to hold on to her faith and turned
her gaze to the other side, she started to see growth springs even
from a far.
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“I learned to increase my
faith. I learned to pray

more for my family, for the
organization and to the
people I am working with.

If there is one thing I can help

to ease the burden, to lessen
the anxiety, to reduce the
pain of those people I know
and work with, it is by way of
lifting them up to our

God Almighty.”

SECTION TITLE
(SERVICE BEFORE SELF)
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SERVICE
BEFORE SELF:

RAFFY
BALADJAY

THE HIGHER CALL

It's easy to lead in a familiar ground,
territory and expertise, but it's another
story when you are asked to guide a pack

in an entirely new environment--fresh way
of doing things, at the same time expect to
perform your best lest excellence is elusive.

Raffy Baladjay, manages the RAFI Microfinance Inc. (RMF) business
excellence department, one of the most challenged departments
under the notorious sovereignty of COVID-19 The very mandate
of his job which singled out "excellence” as the core assignment
already meant a bigger responsibility to fill in. But, for him the shift
called him higher to learn and to lead at the same time.

"At the start of the pandemic it was a challenge for me as one
of the leaders in this organization. Not just because | needed to
shift strategies and working dynamics to maintain productivity
but what made it more difficult was on how | was going to lead
my team given the surprising turn of events,” says Raffy, admitting
that as a leader who is more comfortable on face-to-face kind of
working dynamic, “it's quite hard for me leading virtually at first.”

"For one, | don't have that level of experience yet on this kind
of situation. Second, there is that trust issue with your team
whether they can still deliver their individual deliverables with
less supervision or not. Third, how will we maintain that level
of collaboration with our stakeholders virtually? Lastly, there is
that fear on the situation, particularly how the pandemic will
affect your family. All of this, really made me pause and reflect
how will I move forward as a leader,” Raffy shares his journey in
facing the unknowns of the new normal.

But as the days unfolded during the forced work-from-home
arrangements, Raffy started to get the grip on the changes
he needed to embrace-- being apt with the digital know-how
and letting go of the “trust issues” he may have had towards his
team mates or even to himself in working remotely and giving

instructions via virtual meetings.

This higher call, put him in a space, which gave birth to a new
person in him. Giving his best is an under-statement. After alll,
being on top of the game has been his way of life, otherwise, he
will not be put in the position where he is now. But, in the time
of pandemic, Raffy was pushed to the wall, the call was too big
for him to tackle while he also had to take care of his sanity and
protection of his family.

Ironically, hitting the rock bottom in his professional life made
him a bigger person. Bigger, because not only did he “master”
to manage and lead under a strange environment, but he also
developed other strengths, particularly deeper empathy and
compassion as a leader.

He discovered the beauty of being able to see his team mates,
not as performers, yet as human beings. Raffy, was able to take his
leadership beyond performance-driven, rather he transcended to
feeling a profound sense of empathy looking at each member from
the lenses of his heart. An epiphany he could not have seen in full
clarity without the pandemic.

The lessons of the Covid-19 goes beyond polishing his intellect,
shaping his management prowess and sharpening his resiliency,
but of personal connection which brought about surprising
results—emotionally and professionally.

Responding to the higher
call while riding the tides
of COVID-19 turned out not
an added job, or pressure
to him and his team. The
change however, made
everyone more connected,
motivated and grounded.

Apart from being able to outstrip the health crisis’ headwinds,
Raffy together with his team discovered opportunities both in work
and personal lives.

“Personally, | was able to manage my time more and | was able
to balance my life efficiently. Spending quality time with my family
at home is a treasure. Working at home, my days are longer and
productive as | can have time to take care of myself with daily
fitness activities,” says Raffy, who seemed happier and more
accomplished as ever before.

Leading with a sound mind, balanced life and deep personal
connection, he continues his greatest discovery by far to overcome
the suffocating pressures that COVID-19 has brought in. It is in these
times when he is called higher to lead in an unfamiliar ground,
where he unearthed the secrets to overcoming challenges—
personally and professionally.
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SERVICE
BEFORE SELF:

ERAST
PANES

EPIC TEST OF
CHARACTER

The COVID-19 pandemic is by far the
toughest leadership test for a lot of leaders.
Those at the helm of overseeing operations

and managing people had to cope with
extraordinary demands—from the sudden
shift of work from office to home, internet
connection, health and safety, meeting
targets and the overall uncertainty of what
lies ahead.

For Erasto Panes, the pressures can seem daunting. He says
despite the health and safety issue, figuring out how to restart in
an uncertain environment was something he did not think of —even
in his wildest dreams.

Erasto wasn't prepared. No one was. All he knew at that time was he
needed to embrace change so he could think well of new strategies
to still make the work-from-home setup productive, while showing
empathy and kindness to teammates, who like him, struggled with
the abrupt changes. Not being able to work together in the same
room with colleagues became a major challenge.

Erasto found himself relying so much in technology and virtual
meetings more than ever to get the work done. But the poor
internet connection in his area tested his patience all the more his
creativity.

‘| remember climbing up a tree just to have a better connection
and be able to attend virtual meetings and team engagements,”
Erasto recallls.

Mounting virtual training sessions didn't also come easy. Erasto
feared attendees might not fully grasp the training due to
intermittent internet connection.

"The internet connection wasn't stable; the bandwidth was not
enough to allow participants to turn on their video cameras which
led us to think if the discussions were effectively grasped by them
and if the effectiveness of the virtual session wasn't compromised,”
he shared.

These challenges led Erasto's team to come up with new strategies
fitting for today's requirement. He sent himself and his team to
seminars on virtual training session delivery so they would know
how to effectively mount them. They learn from other organizations
the way virtual sessions are conducted and how they are effectively
done.

“New strategies had to be rolled out; new steps had to be
undertaken. | even remember calling up my cousins, former
officemates, former professors, asking them of their opinions, their
experiences in doing so,” he says.

Erasto cared enough for his team and the organization that he
is willing to unlearn to learn again. The pandemic has made him
bravely step out from his comfort zone.

"I believe that when someone is dedicated and passionate about
what he or she is doing and he or she cares enough for his or her
team and the whole organization, he or she would do anything to
really make things efficiently and effectively done,” he says.

FAITH BUILDING

To avoid burnout during those most stressful times of the
pandemic, Erasto turned to God to walk him through every
single day. He became more prayerful.

He realized to value life more and everything he has. He
became more grateful even in small things. He became more
compassionate and kind.

This pandemic has changed people, all for the better, he said.
‘| learned to increase my faith. | learned to pray more for my
family, for the organization and to the people | am working with.
If there is one thing | can help to ease the burden, to lessen
the anxiety, to reduce the pain of those people | know and
work with, it is by way of lifting them up to our God Almighty. A
simple whisper of prayer: ‘God help us bear all these. Enlighten
everyone's feelings. We truly believe that you love us even more
than loving the birds and the trees around us’ was so powerful,”
says Erasto.

These trying times also taught him to be patient and more
understanding of the feelings of others. Instead of feeling
disappointed and irked right way over delayed submission of
reports citing weak internet connection as one of the reasons,
Erasto turns to prayer over things he no longer has control of.

The same goes for interrupted virtual reporting and virtual

training discussions.

"Yes, disappointments pile up but then again, we need to
adjust to the situation. We need to adopt and utilize fully
whatever resources available and excel. The learnings from the
situation are important and necessary; as | always say, | have a
big role in the foundation and my team members are expecting
something from me. | have to be a role model so that everyone
in my team may influence, follow and do the same thing, too.”

NEW OPPORTUNITIES
BLOSSOMED

Amid the challenges he encountered and adjustments he went
through, Erasto's sacrifices didn't go unnoticed. Because of his
exemplary leadership skill, Erasto was entrusted with a bigger
responsibility he gladly embraced.

"Pre-pandemic, | handled the Learning and Development Unit
under Human Capital. We are the ones responsible for the on-
boarding programs of our newly hired employees, capacity-
building programs, developing more leaders and the like, but
the opportunity to serve more opened up during the pandemic.
The foundation called for a workforce maximization, which led
me to handle the whole RMF Human Capital where Learning and
Development unit is just one of its components,” shares Erasto,
beaming with pride, knowing that this bigger role would allow him
to help the foundation achieve its purpose.

"I was asked and trusted with a bigger responsibility of assuming
the whole tasks for RMF Human Capital, assuming the lead roles
for talent retention, learning and development, a bit part of talent
optimization, and early this year the talent acquisition. It was quite
hard in the beginning, but with the support and assistance of our
very own Chief People Officer, sir Mike Godinez and by God's grace
and guidance, | hope | am gradually doing it finer,” he says.

Erasto’s journey in 2020 may have had many setbacks, stress and
anxiety but his willingness to thrive amid the difficulties sharpened
his leadership skill, not only in completing tasks but more importantly
in leading people and building deeper connection with them.

't was by far his toughest
challenge, but it brought
out the best in him. "For
me, a true leader responds
to whatever the situation
is and assumes the tasks
accordingly as needed”
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Nanays
Can Do it

“And even though the
pandemic has slowed the
business down, she still
managed to adapt to the
times...through the help of
social media and through the
RAFI MFI Tindahan Ni Nanay”
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TURNING ORDINARY GARMENTS
INTO EXTRAORDINARY APPAREL

Joivy's bustling apparel business started as a humble attempt to recycle old garments. She felt bad
about throwing out her children’s used garments. So, instead of letting them collect dust in the closet
or find a new home in the dump, she decided to turn them into usable apparel instead.

She starts each day by checking her existing inventory. When she first started, she didn't have to worry
that much about keeping track. Back then, all she cared about was creating something out of nothing.
But now that so many people rely on her business, she has to stay on top of her game.

NANAYS CAN DO IT

Every morning, she takes a little time to do
just that. Keeping track of orders, checking
her socials for new orders, managing the
inventory, and of course, helping out with
the sewing -- these are just some of the
things that Jiovy has on her plate.

This busy bee finds herself
doing a bunch of things for the
business throughout the day.
But perhaps the most rewarding
part for her is the satisfaction
of knowing that her hard work
allows people to get the clothes
that they want at a price that
won't hurt their pockets,
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ANGELY

COMENDADOR

SUCCESS WITH
HOT & CRISPY
GINABOT

Angely starts her day with a prayer and of course, a
big bag of pork ready for cooking. She heads to the
market early in the morning to make sure she can set
up just in time for the customers who flock her stall
during the day.

Lunchtime is when her day gets really busy. Before
the pandemic, she had to meet the demands of so
many customers at once. Her place at the market
is a spot that most customers know and love, some
loyal regulars never miss a day of her delectable
cooking. Most patrons swear by her well-prepared
and deliciously cooked specialty. Her ginabot recipe,
paired by puso, is definitely a Cebuano staple.

Now that she's mainly doing business from home,
she also has managed to involve her kids with the
preparations and has passed on her secret recipe to
them. For the foodies that frequent Angely's ginabot
place, they're on the look-out for what she has to offer
next.

And even though the
pandemic has slowed
the business down,

she still managed to

adapt to the times by
bringing her hot and

crispy ginabot right in
her customers’ homes

through the help

of social media and
through the RAFI MF]
Tindahan Ni Nanay.
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CAN DO IT

AYLIN LIGAD

SEWING DREAMS ONE
RETASO AT A TIME

Maylin has a dream: to see her sons
succeed in life. Through hard work and
creative strides, she was able to come up
with a business that utilizes retaso or cloth
scraps. She wakes up even before the sun's
early rays reach the skies just to collect
retasos all around the small barangay that
she currently resides in.

From these measly scraps of cloth, she
then gets to work in front of her trusty
sewing machine. Maylin then sets the gears
to create a host of things. From kitchen
rags to classy bags, she works her magic
through that day's batch of cloth scraps.
Before long, she has a pile of finished
products underneath the machine -- all
ready to get delivered to her customers or
displayed in her store.

Her business
operations end

at dusk, just in
time for her sons
to arrive from
school. Aside
from her sewing
business, one of
the things that
really light up
Maylin's day is
that small window
of time she gets
to spend with her
beloved boys.




“Finding ways to get involved
no matter the situation, truly
have the potential to create
real connections and build
long-lasting relationship...
this is what RAFI MFI truly
stands for.”

SECTION TITLE
(SUPER YET HUMAN)
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SUPER YET HUMAN

CHARLITO
REMOROSO

SPEAKING THE
LANGUAGE OF
SERVICE

Sometimes showing support does not
need elaborate actions or uttering
dozens of comforting words. More

often, it is much appreciated when
communicated in the language best
understood by the people who
desperately need it.

Charito Remoroso excels in speaking the language of service in
his struggle on how to give support to his clients whose livelihoods
were adversely affected by the long stretch of COVID-19 impact
to the vegetable growers in the southern town of Sibonga, Cebu.

Charito, a Rafi Microfinance staff in charge of Sibonga operations
managed to bring up the spirits of his otherwise discouraged
clients, when he consistently showed up in the middle of a
lockdown, traversing the border-to-border health protocols.

From his home town in Carcar, Charito travels to Sibonga frequently,
to offer only his presence. He thought, the best way he could show
support is “just to be with them.”

Out of ideas on how to help the farmers sell their products as
transport access is impossible, Charito convinced them to mount a
door-to-door sales blitz in order to dispose of the fresh harvests, so
they can continue earning even if it means losing profits.

Knocking at the doors of households from Sibonga to neighboring
towns like Ronda was the only relief Charito and the farmers could
think of, "vegetables, and other fresh products were dumped
because there was no way they could transport them to Carbon
market.”

Charito became one with his clients. He served the farmers beyond
what is expected of him. He led them to face the war of Covid-19
and market slump with courage and fearlessness. Charito spoke
their language through his beyond-the-office-mandate service.

Bonding with his clients during the most difficult ordeal, resonated
to the hearts of the farmers. Likewise, Charito also felt a deep
connection with them, far more deep that he was willing to
sacrifice time and sweat, even the vulnerability of infection just to
lift their morale and help them see the positive side of what was
happening.

Because he was able to speak their language through his hands-
on service, Charito gained the respect of his clients influencing
them to choose the high road of not giving up.

In their door-to-door sales expeditions, they faced the big waves
of fear from COVID-19 infection. Giving up was not an option, he
shared.

He needed not say anything more, he just showed up almost every

day until the clients gained their confidence, and saw the results
of their labor. Before long, Charito noticed the transformation of
his clients’ attitude in facing the snags of the pandemic becoming
more creative in making a living and most of all being good
stewards of the money they make.

Together, Charito and this clients learned a lot of lessons,
particularly the kernel of truth in business and in life—to spare some
for the future.

The pain and difficulties of the pandemic refined the relationship
between Charito and the RMF clients. The language that Charito
spoke in silence made his microfinance customers want to do
more, aim for the best everyday realizing that even in bad times
they are valued. Most of all they matter.

SUPER YET HUMAN

JAMES
BARING

MADE FOR MORE

Despite the real danger of the
Covid-19 pandemic to everyone's lives
and jobs, James Baring., a trust staff

of RMF-Cebu Branch. has put his

own safety and well-being aside to
provide support
to RMF's clients in dealing with the
challenges arising from this global
health crisis.

“Nobody was prepared for the pandemic. It caught all of us by
surprise,” says James, recalling of the company’s announcement
telling him not to report for work. This was at the height of the
pandemic situation in Cebu in 2020 where the entire province was
put in the strictest form of lockdown, while the healthcare system is
racing against time to contain the Covid-19 transmission.

"I've never been so afraid in my life. | felt anxious because | am
the head of the family. | was thinking about our day-to-day living,
and the threats of this virus to my health and my family's health.
But despite of the fears and uncertainties, RMF supported us. They
were always ready to lend a hand,” he says.

While on lockdown, James continued looking after RMF's clients
answering all of their inquiries through online and phone calls. He
said he never felt so close to them than in the past year. When
the restrictions eased and the border controls were gradually
lifted, James sought for a travel pass in his hometown in Carcar
City so he could report back to work. But such move, according
to James would prevent him from coming home to his family since
the Carcar LGU wouldn't allow re-entry to the city due to the still
surging Covid-19 cases.

"I was on a crossroad that time. The pandemic wants me to make
a choice. Get the pass and work but | won't be able to see my
family in the meantime or not report for work and face higher
consequences,” James recalled.

But he courageously picked the former, believing that he is made
for more. "Deep in my heart | know | am not here for one purpose. |
am here for many purposes and that is to help both my clients and
my family,” James said, explaining that it isn't only his family that is
struggling but there are a lot of other families too that are wrestling
from this crisis, and they needed his help.

Through his network, James linked the vegetable farmers of
Sibonga to new buyers in Dumanjug and Toledo at the height of
the lockdown. The RMF-Cebu Branch temporarily served as a drop
off and pick-up points of their clients’ fresh produce. More than
just helping clients meet new buyers, the Covid-19 pandemic has
helped James find deeper meaning in his job. He is humbled he is
given the opportunity to extend help given the limited capacity.

James realized that a spark of encouragement could mean a lot,
and showing clients that they truly matter, especially during these
challenging times, could push them to unlock their potential to rise
above this pandemic. "You can easily be discouraged in this kind of
situation. But for us to overcome this ordeal, we need to encourage
one another,” he says.

James also took the opportunity to educate RMF clients about
the importance of vaccination in beating this pandemic. "Many of
them are still hesitant to get vaccinated,” he said. "They'd rather
believe on the 'fake news' about the vaccine. But | saw that as an
opportunity to educate them so they'd have better perspective
and they can make wiser decision.”

Setting aside one's own interest for the benefit of others is indeed
life-changing. James' one big decision to step out gave his clients
hope at a hopeless, fearful time. He is convinced more than ever
that he is indeed made for more.
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SHAMIERA
HABAGAT

GOING THE
EXTRA MILE

Shamiera Habagat. is not just a
mere employee who has proven her
dedication and commitment to her

job over and over again. But she is a

woman worth the applause of many.
whose heart expands to save not only
her family. her job. most of all the
livelihood of the people she considers
part of her life.

Shamiera is in-charge of the Rafi Micro Finance (MFI) branch in Barangay
Mantalongon, Dalaguete, Cebu. This vegetable basket in Cebu has been
her office ground for years, where she helps and provides small farmers
needed capital to grow crops and vegetables to feed the entire Cebu

province and neighboring islands.

Yet, everything changed when the Covid-19 outbreak hit Cebu in the early
part of 2020. Aside from stay-at-home rule, the lockdown order in every
border made the situation much harder forcing her to be stuck at home too,
while her clients’ livelihood back in the farm ceased.

A resident of Carcar, Cebu, a few kilometers away from Mantalogon,
Shamiera could not abandon her job, much more the need to check out her
clients-turned-friends' lives under the strict quarantine environment. While,
she's also concern of the safety of her family back home, risking herself to go
on field at the height of virus contamination was one of the bravest acts of
service she could muster, only to be with the people who were also with her

in good times.

Farm to market business was down, and farmers who have outstanding
accounts can hardly earn a penny a day because of tight restrictions.
Shamiera had to balance her attention towards saving her job, keeping the
livelihood of the farmers afloat and at the same time protecting her family
from the probable infection, considering that she had to travel far to do her
job on field.

Reporting to her office ground knowing that nothing was moving, could be a
waste of time, energy and resources. She could do the checking after tight
health protocols are lifted, but her heart is urging her otherwise. Instead,
she insisted on visiting her farmer friends in Mantongon—if only just to be
with them, letting them know that MFl is not just there in better times, but
most of all in worst times. Going extra mile is Shamiera's personal initiative,
a heartfelt gesture of support to farmers, while she too has concerns and

fears of her own.

Shamiera had to endure long hours of travel—border to border stop, and
had to take a bath upon entry to Dalaguete as part of the town's health
protocol. Her mission to collect payment had been put aside for a while.
What was important for her was to hold the hands of her clients while they
are experiencing market drought and zero income.

Her woman instinct as a nurturer and care giver was all the more refined,
doing something humane, not just for the sake of keeping her job, but

helping farmers go through life, every single day in the time of Covid-19

While engaging with the farmers, Shamiera also was able to impart a lesson
she learned experiencing the economic slump caused by the pandemic. "I
learned that keeping savings is very important. What | spared in my savings
helped me big time during the lockdown. | imparted this learning to the
farmers telling them to be prepared because we don't know what is ahead
of us," she shares.

She remained true to her clients with or without business. Going extra mile
is not a burden for her, yet she considers it a joy to have been able to lead
by example, continue the friendship and look forward to grow with them as
the market recovers.

Hoping to seeing them going extra mile too in managing their farm-business
and becoming wise agri-business entrepreneurs in the future has become

her personal dream.

SUPER YET HUMAN

MICO
PUTON

BEYOND THE
CALL OF DUTY

At the heart of the Covid-19
pandemic is a brave soul and a

dedicated employee who always
goes above and beyond his call to
serve the Nanays of RMF.

Amid the threats of transmission and stress caused by the
lockdowns, Mico Puton chose to step out to help during the
pandemic, and since then, he has become a ray of selflessness
and optimism to the Nanays, whose lives and businesses were
turned upside down because of the lingering effects of this global
heallth crisis.

Since becoming part of the RMF, Mico's life changed for the better.
More than thinking of himself and what he could get from this job,
Mico found a new sense of purpose, one that can never be equated
with money. As a trust staff, who serves as a frontliner at RMF, Mico
poured his heart to helping people, making sure the Nanays still
get the same quality of support to grow their businesses despite
border controls, limited travel movement and work-from-home
arrangement.

Technology was Mico's ally during that time as he constantly
monitors the Nanays and their families virtually or through phone
calls. He continued to nurture the relationship by staying connected
with them while being physically apart.

“We remained to be of service despite the difficulties. We
encouraged our Nanays to never lose hope," says Mico, adding
that uttering such words during those times may seem difficult to
take in when everything around them seems to be hopeless.

But he believed words have power. In this case, his gentle words
bring life. “I told the Nanays that there is no way but up and that
RAFI will hand-hold them to be victorious in this battle.” | gave
them that reassuring promise that, "We are in this together.”

Mico never wasted time and helped the Nanays slowly bring back
the livelihoods shattered by the pandemic, even if he encountered
difficulties and frustrations when it comes to payment collections.

"We just need to be more understanding during these trying times
and meet with them half way. More importantly, let us make our
clients feel that they are valued and loved," says Mico, reminding
his fellow-trust staff to persevere.

Going back and forth meeting the Nanays was also an opportunity
he grabbed to educate them in doing businesses under the new
normal, underscoring the importance of olbserving safety protocols
at all times.

Mico realized that when someone is called to do the job, he should
get about the business of fulfilling it no matter the difficulties and
the circumstance. “It's true that when you don't love your job; it will
become another chore that you will get tired of doing one day.”

But he never felt it like a chore, knowing that RAFI has since treated
him like a family. “When we were on lockdown not working, we
still continue to receive our salaries. RAFI took care of us and our
families. When our branch was quarantined they brought us the
things we need. I'm just so grateful for this company,” he says.

Fulfilling one's job amid the everyday threats on health and safety
is no longer just considered a job. It's more than that. It's a calling
that Mico bravely faces each day--to serve faithfully the people
whose lives he touched—with or without the pandemic.
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REYNARD
BRIONES

BUILDING
EMOTIONAL
CONNECTION

Showing empathy to the clients
during this time of pandemic has
allowed Reynard Briones to effectively

communicate what RAFI MFl is all
about. He believes showing sincere and
genuine care can go a long way as it
can build and strengthen relationship.

Reynard said this present pandemic taught him humility and
customer empathy. He says the ability to see things from the client's
perspective allowed him to fully understand the depths of their
struggles, making him to communicate with care and compassion.

"I really had difficulty reaching to our clients. It was a struggle. For
the past years, we were used to dealing with them face-to-face.
We visit them personally and monitor their businesses. But this time
around, it's different,” says Reynard, recalling that travel restrictions
had prevented them to reach out those micro- entrepreneurs living
in far-flung areas.

"We learned that some survived and were able to bounce back.
There were also some that until now are having difficulty getting
back in business. But we are here, helping them recover and rebuild
what they've lost,” he adds.

Payment collection was a crucial task at the height of the
pandemic because all businesses, big and small, have been
practically wounded by the pandemic.

But Reynard's effective methods were to stay reachable and
emotionally connected. "Understanding them really played an
important role. What was clear to me was that RAFI MFI doesn't
want to lose them. We want to keep them, especially during this
season,” he shares, adding that being considerate with the client's
current financial position allowed him to come up with better
options which are a win-win solution for both parties.

"If we are going to be so strict with them it's like we are driving them
away when what we want is to keep them and help them survive
this crisis.”

Good thing, RAFI MFI has relaxed its payment policies allowing
micro- entrepreneurs to buy some time to settle their dues.
Reynard, in his own little way, also walked the extra mile to help
these micro- entrepreneurs settle their loans.

He helped a client sell his firewood by putting his product online
so he could pay for his loan. “I learned that he is having difficulty
selling his firewood because his buyer, who is running o carenderia,
stopped operating. To help him, | linked him to an online seller and
fortunately, his firewood got sold,” he shared.

Reynard was also instrumental in helping another client sold his lap
machine by posting it on Facebook.

"I told my staff to help these people, to encourage them, especially
those who don't have access to social media and technology,”
he says. For Reynald, small actions such as these speak volume
in sending a strong, reassuring message that "RAFI MFl is here for
them.”

"We need to connect with them emotionally,” he says. Navigating
this pandemic wasn't also easy for Reynard who travels to work by
motorcycle. He also endured being in quarantine after a neighbor
exhibited Covid- 19 symptoms.

"The hassle alone of going through these safety protocols before
hugging your children when you go home from work is already a
big sacrifice. There were times when | get discouraged but | just
keep on going,” he recalls.

Reynard advised his co-workers in RAFI MFI to press on. "Padayon
ta sa pagsabot sa atong mga clients. We need to help them,” he
told his office mates, reminding them that most of RAFI MFl's clients
were in good financial position until this pandemic happened.
Reynard is also thankful to RAFI MFI's efforts in alleviating financial
stress as the pandemic continues to unfold.

He is grateful that the organization provided financial relief and
flexible solutions to clients’ financial challenges. It even expanded
its coverage by setting up more

RAFI MFI branches nationwide to reach out to more communities. “|
am happy kay nibati sila sa kahimtang sa clients,” says Reynard. ‘|
am happy too nga wala mi nila pasagdi.”

Companies that stay true to their vision, like RAFI MFI, regardless of
season are worthy of emulation.

Finding ways to get involved no matter the situation, truly have
the potential to create real connections and build long-lasting
relationship.

And Reynard believes this is what RAFI MFI truly stands for.
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Certified Public Accountants

(S Luis Canete & Company

MICRO INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
FINANCE

STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY The Stockholders and the Board of Directots

FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS @ RAFI MICRO-FINANCE, INC.
(A Non-Stock, Non-Profit Organization)
35 Lopez Jaena Street
Pari-an, Cebu City

The management of RAFI MICRO-FINANCE, INC. is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation
of the financial statements for the year ended
December 31, 2020, in accordance with the prescribed financial reporting framework indicated therein. This
responsibility includes designing and implementing internal controls relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or etror,

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of RAFI MICRO-FINANCE, INC,,

selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies, and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in (RMF), which comprise the balance sheets as at December 31, 2020 and 2019, and the

the circumstances. statements of operations, statements of other comprehensive income, statements of changes in

The Board of Trustees reviews and approves the financial statements and submits the same to the e balanc.e e e g of cash ﬂ(.)WS for the yeres theq y st atsl ircies Yoo nesl]
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

stockholders or members.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the

Luis .Caget; &ﬁ CO“TPIa my, CEas, the independent a.udltors, appomtf:d by .t.he ,StOCkhOlders has financial position of RMF as at December 31, 2020 and 2019, and of its financial performance
=, Eim TR, siatetuetca of the company in accordance with Philippine Standards on and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting
Auditing, and in its report to stockholders or members, has expressed its opinion on the fairness of Standards (PFRSs)

presentation upon completion of such examination.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing (PSAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of RMF in accordance
with the ethical requirements that ate televant to our audits of the financial statements in the
Philippines, the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants in the Philippines, and we have fulfilled our
/ - other ethical responsibilities in accotdance with these requirements. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and approptiate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Pfesident,

Catrlos B. Kahn
CFO/Treasurer Emphasis of the Matter

We draw attention to Note 2 to the financial statements which disclosed that the accompanying
financial statements of RMF have been prepared in accordance with the Philippine Financial
Reporting Standards (PFRSs), as modified by the application of the following financial reporting
Signed this 204 of _March 2021 relief issued and approved by the Securities and Exchange Commission in response to the
Cebu City, Philippines COVID-19 pandemic: straight-line amottization of the P39.8 million additional provision fot
expected credit losses over five years.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in accordance with PFRSs, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary
Loo,{ing Back, Moving Forward to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
RAFI Micro-finance, Inc. (RMF) celebrates 20 years of elevating the lives whether due to fraud or error.

3F Oftana Building, Jasmin Corner Don Mariano Cui Streets, Cebu City, Philippines _A N o .
Telephone (6332) 255 2491 (6332) 255 3428 Fax (6332) 254 3591 % Morison KSi
Emaill lucanete@Iicccpas.com.ph  lucanete@pldtdsl.net &7 Independent member
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(S Luis Canete & Company

In prepating the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the RMF’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate RMF
ot to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the RMF’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or etror, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with PSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can atise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with PSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and petform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, mistepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are approptiate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the RMF’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the RMF’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a matetial uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosutres in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause
RMEF to cease to continue as a going concern.

(s Luis Cafete & Company

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair representation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify duting our audit.

Repott on the Supplementary Tax Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial
statements taken as a whole. The supplementaty tax information in Note 25 to the financial
statements is presented for purposes of filing with the Bureau of Internal Revenue and is not a
requited part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of
management. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in our audit
of the basic financial statements. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material
respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

LUIS CANETE & COMPANY

BOA/PRC Reg. No. 0127 (Until January 15, 2022)

SEC Accreditation No. 0379-F (Group A) (Until July 24, 2022)
BIR AN 13-004896-002-2018 (Until August 9, 2021)

For the Firm:

ANDRE HN/S. CANETE

Partner

CPA Cettificate No. 114711

SEC Accteditation No. 114711-SEC (Group A) (Until February 20, 2024)
BIR AN 13-009211-002-2020 (Until Febtuary 18, 2023)

TIN 240-785-319, PTR No. 1988021 — January 5, 2021, Cebu City

Cebu City
Match 5, 2021
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RATT MICRO-FINANCE, INC.

(A Non-Stock, Non-Profit Organization)
STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

For the Years Ended Decernber 31, 2020 and 2019
(Amounts Expressed n Whole Philippine Pesos)

EXHIBIT "B"

Note 2020 2019
REVENUES
Income from microfinancing activities 4 P998,190.75¢  P1,080,351,539
Interest mncome from banks 3 5,004,184 4,044,323
Other supports 10 1,964,840 3,089,443
1,005,159,780  1.087,485.305
EXPENSES
Expenses for microfinancing activities 11 981,949,493 792,391,294
Administrative expenses 12 141,433,050 858,356,292
1,123,382,543 880,747,586
PROFIT (LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAX (118,222,763 200,737,719
INCOME TAX EXPENSE 13 (20,003,112) (21,668,820)
PROFIT (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR (P138,225,875) P185,068,899

EXHIBIT "A"
RATT MICRO-FINANCE, INC.
(A Non-Stack, Non-Profit Organization)
BALANCE SHEETS
Decernber 31, 2020 and 2019
(Amounts Expressed in Whole Philippine Pesos)
Note 2020 2019
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash 3 P286.937,795  P237,900,810
Loans receivable - net 4 2,411,777.264 1,627,199,072
Accounts recervable 5 93,164,163 71,777,886
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 27,246,022 40,165,636
Total Current Assets 2,819,125,244 1,977,043,404
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property and equipment - net 6 204,047,499 135,581,442
TOTAL ASSETS P3,023,172,745  P2,112,624,346
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 7 P196,954,555 P94.776,405
Short-term loans 8 1,432,333 333 505,000,000
Members' fund 9 605,514,383 600,122,212
Income tax payable 13 7,826,598 6,528,157
Total Current Liabilities 2,242 628,869 1,206,426.,774
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Non-current portion of lease hability 7 14,031,292 4232340
Accrued retirement payable 15 68,625,237 28,141,934
Total Non-Current Liabilities 82,656,529 32,374,274
TOTAL LIABILITIES 2325285398  1.238,801,048
FUND BALANCE (Exhibit "D") 697,887 345 873,823,798
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE P3,023,172,743 P2.112.624,846

{See accompanying rotes to financial statements)

(See accomparnying notes fo financial statements)
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RATT MICRO-FINANCE, INC.

(A Non-Stack, Non-Profit Organization)
STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the Years Ended Decernber 31, 2020 and 2019
(Amounts Expressed in Whole Philippine Pesos)

EXHIBIT "C"

Note 2020 2019
PROFIT (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR (P138,225,875) P185,068,899
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS
Items not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss
Actuanal loss on retirement benefits 15 (37,710,578) (29,420,371)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR (P175,936,453) P155,648,528

{See accompanying rnotes to financial statements)

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(<)
©

EXHIBIT "I
RAFI MICRO-FINANCE, INC.
(A Non-Stock, Non-Profit Organization)
STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
For the Years Ended December 31, 2020 and 2019
(Amounts Expressed in Whole Philippine Pesos)
Cumulative actuarial
gain (loss) on retirement Cumulative results
benefits Note 15) of operations Total
Balance at December 31, 2018 P37.713,903 P680,461,367 P718,175.270
Profit for the year 5 185,068,899 185,068,899
Other comprehensive loss
Actuarial loss on retirement benefits (29,420,371) - (29,420,371}
Balance at December 31, 2019 8,293 532 865,530 266 873,823,798
Loss for the year 2 (138,225,875) (138,225,875)
Other comprehensive loss
Actuarial loss on retirement benefits (37,710,578) - (37,710,578}
Balance at December 31, 2020 (P29 417 046) P727.304,391 P697.887,345

(See accompanying notes to finansial statements,
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RATT MICRO-FINANCE, INC.

(A Non-Stack, Non-Profit Organization)
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the Years Ended Decernber 31, 2020 and 2019
(Amounts Expressed in Whole Philippine Pesos)

EXHIBIT "E"

RAFI MICRO-FINANCE, INC.

(A Non-Stock, Non-Profit Organization)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2020

(Amounts Expressed in Whole Philippine Pesos)

CORPORATE INFORMATION

RAFIMICRO-FINANCE, INC. (RMF) 1s a non-stock, non-profit organization organized
under Philippine laws on December 10, 1998 with corporate name of Cebu Micro-Enterprise
Development Foundation, Inc. Its articles of incorporation was amended changing its name
to RAFI Micro-finance Inc. on September 6, 2011. Tts principal office 1s located at 35
Eduardo Aboitiz Street, Barangay Tinago, Cebu City.

RMF was created i response to the need of coming up with a credit and savings program
whose main task is to assist individuals and/or institutions in identifying, facilitating and co-
financing feasible and viable income generating venturers.

RMF 1s presently engaged in the extension of financial services to Filipinos who are
moderately poor to help them achieve self-sufficiency. It has two hundred sixteen (2106)
branches as of December 31, 2020 and one hundred seventy four (174) branches as of
December 31, 2019 over six (6) provinces in the Visayas: Cebu, Leyte, Samar, Negros, Bohol,

and lloileo.

It serves as the microfinance arm of Ramon Aboitiz Foundation, Inc.

1.
Note 2020 2019
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITTES
Income from microfinancing activities P998,205,703  P1,068,698,877
Receipts from other supports 10 1,964,840 3,089,443
Cash paid to suppliers and employees (958,985,102) (919,167,496)
Cash generated from operations 41,185,441 152,620,824
Tncrease in loans receivable (784,578,192) (306,337.961)
Cash used for operations (743,392,751) (153,717,137)
Interest ncome from banks 3 5,004,184 4,044,323
Contribution to retirement fund 15 {(16,028,415) {14,643,142)
Income tax paid (18,704,672) (20,149,189)
Net cash used in operating activities (773,121,654) (184,465,145)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Capital expenditures ¢ (94,690,324 (70,891,262}
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITTES
Tncrease in members' fund 5,392,171 129,706,798
TLoan availments 1,499,000,000 505,000,000
Loan payments (571,666,667) (255,000,000)
Tnterest paid (15,876,541 (16,395,770)
Net cash provided by financing activities 916,848,963 363,311,028 2.
NET INCREASE TN CASH 49,036,985 107,954,621
CASH BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 3 237,900,810 129,946,189
CASH BALANCE AT END OF YEAR 3 P286,937.795 P237,900,810

{See accompanying notes to financial statements)

BASIS OF PREPARATION, STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE AND SUMMARY OF
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basts of Preparation.

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost basis.
The financial statements are presented in Philippine peso, which 1s RMF’s presentation and
functional currency.

Statement of Compliance.

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared i accordance with the Philippine
Financial Reporting Standards (PFRSs), as modified by the application of the following
financial reporting relief 1ssued and approved by the Securities and Exchange Commission in
response to the COVID-19 pandemic: straight-line amortization of the P39.8 muillion
additional provision for expected credit losses over five years. The relief covers only current
year transactions or events and do not unpact the comparative year.
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Quantitative mmpact of the relief availed of are as follows:

a) The impact on the financial statements line itermns if the provision for expected credit losses was
measured and recorded m accordance with PFRSs are as follows:

Loans recervable (P39,796,674)
Allowance for expected credit losses 39,796,674
Fund balance 39,796,674
Provision for expected credit losses 39,796,674
b) Amount of allowance recognized / amortized for the year —
¢) Balance of unrecognized / unamortized allowance 39,796,674

Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year,
except for the new and revised standards and Philippine Interpretations which were applied
starting January 1, 2020. RMF has not early adopted any other standard, mterpretation or
amendment that has been 1ssued but 1s not yet effective.

The adoption of the following new and amended standards and interpretations did not have
any significant inpact on RME’s financial statements:

o  Amendments to PFRS 3, Definition of a Business
o  Amendments to PAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements, and PAS 8, Accounting
Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Ervors, Definition of Material

o  Amendments to PERS 7, Financal Instruments: Disclosures and PERS 9, Financial
Instruments, Intevest Rate Benchmark Reform

® Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting 1ssued on March 29, 2018
o Amendments to PERS 16, COVID-19 related Rent Concessions

Pronouncements 1ssued but not yet effective are listed below. RMF intends to adopt the
tollowing pronouncements when they become eftective. Adoption of these pronouncements
1s not expected to have a significant impact on RMI's financial statements.

Effective beginning on or after Januarvy 1, 2021

e  Amendments to PFRS 9, PERS 7, PFRS 4 and PFRS 16, Inferest Rate Benchmark
Reform — Phase 2

Effective beginning on or after [anunarvy 1, 2022
e Amendments to PFRS 3, Reference to the Conceptual Framework
o Amendments to PAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Ulse
e Amendments to PAS 37, Onerons Contracts — Costs of Fulfilling a Contract
o _Amnual Impirovements to PEFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle
o Amendments to PFRS 1, First-time Adoption of PFRS — Subsidiary as a first-time
adopter
o Amendments to PFRS 9, Financal Instruments — Fees in the "10 per cent’ test for
derecognition of fimancial labifities
o PAS 41, Agrieulture — Taxation in fair value measurements

Effective beginning on or after January 1, 2023
o  DPERS 17, Insurance Contracts
¢  Amendments to PAS 1: Classification of Liabilities as Curvent or Non-current

Deferved effectivity
o Amendments to PFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements, and PAS 28, Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint 1 enture
¢ Deferral of Philippines Interpretation Committee (PIC) Q&A No. 2018-12 on
PERS 15, Reveme from Contracts with Customers, for Real Estate Companies

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

a. Fair value measurement.

Fair value 1s the price that would be recetved to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair
value measurement 1s based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or
transfer the liability takes place either:

¢ [n the principal market for the asset or hability, or

® In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the
asset or lability.

The prmncipal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by RMF.

The fair value of an asset or a lLability 1s measured using the assumptions that market
partictpants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market
partictpants act in their economic best interest.

A farr value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's
ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in 1ts highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

RMF uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and lhabilittes for which fair value 1s measured or disclosed m the financial
statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on
the lowest level input that 1s significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

o Tevel 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities

¢  Level 2— Valuation techniques for which the lowest level mnput that 1s significant
to the fair value measurement 1s directly or indirectly observable

¢ Tevel 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that 1s significant
to the fair value measurement is unobservable
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For assets and labilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring
basis, RMFE determines whether transfers have occurred between Levels i the hierarchy
by re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that 1s significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, RMF has determined classes of assets and
liabilities on the basts of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and
the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

Cash and cash equivalents.

Cash includes cash on hand and in banks. Cash equivalents are short term, highly liquid
mnvestments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with onginal maturities
of three months or less and that are subject to an msignificant risk of change 1n value.

Financial assets and financial labilities.

Initial recoenition.

RMF recognizes a financial asset or a financial hability in the balance sheets when RMF
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the mstrument.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized on the trade date,
which 1s the date that RMF commuits to purchase the asset. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Fmancial assets and financial labilities are recognized mitially at cost which 1s the fair
value at inception. Transaction costs, it any, are included 1n the initial measurement of all
tinancial assets and labilities, except for financial mstruments measured at fair value

through profit or loss (FVTPL).

Where the transaction price m a non-active market 1s different from the fair value of other
observable current market transactions in the same mstrument or based on a valuation
technique whose variables mclude only data from observable market, RMF recognizes
the ditference between the transaction price and fair value (a ‘Day 17 difference) in the
statement of operations unless 1t qualifies for recognition as some other type of asset. In
cases where use 1s made of data which 1s not observable, the difference between the
transaction price and model value 1s only recognized in the statement of operations when
the mputs become observable or when the instrument 1s derecognized. For each
transaction, RMF determines the appropriate method of recogmzing the ‘Day 1°
difference amount.

Fmancial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount 1s reported 1n the
balance sheet if, and only if, there 1s a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognized amounts and there 1s an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the
assets and settle the habilities stmultaneously. This 1s not generally the case with master
netting agreements, and the related assets and liabilities are presented at gross amounts in
the balance sheet.

Contractual cash flows assessment.

For each financial asset, RMF assesses the contractual terms to identify whether the
mnstrument 1s consistent with the concept of Solely Payments of Principal and Interest

(SPPI).

‘Principal’ for the purpose of this test 1s detimed as the fair value of the financial asset at
iutial recognition and may change over the life of the financial asset (for example, 1f there
are repayments of principal or amortization of the premuim/discount).

The most significant elements of interest within a lending arrangement are typically the
consideration for the time value of money and credit risk. To make the SPPI assessment,
RMF applies judgment and considers relevant factors such as the currency in which the
financial asset 1s denorminated, and the period for which the mnterest rate 1s set.

In contrast, contractual terms that introduce a more than de minmimis exposure to risks or
volatility in the contractual cash flows that are unrelated to a basic lending arrangement
do not give rise to contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and mterest
on the amount outstanding. In such cases, the financial asset 1s required to be measured

at FVTPL.

Evaluation of business model in managing financial instruments.

RMF determines its business model at the level that best reflects how it manages groups
of financial assets to achieve its business objective. RMEF’s business model 1s notassessed
on an mstrument-by-mnstrument basis, but at a higher level of aggregated portfolios and
1s based on observable factors such as:

* How the performance of the business model and the financial assets held within that
business model are evaluated and reported to the entity's key management personnel;

* The nisks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets
held within that business model) and, 1 particular, the way those risks are managed,
and

* The expected frequency, value and timing of sales are also important aspects of RMF’s
assessment.

The business model assessment 1s based on reasonably expected scenarios without taking
'worst case' or 'stress case’ scenarios into account. If cash flows after initial recognition
are realized in a way that 1s different from RMF’s ongmal expectations, RMF does not
change the classification of the remaining financial assets held 1n that business model, but
incorporates such information when assessing newly ongmated or newly purchased
financial assets going forward.

Categories of Financial Assets and Financial Tiabilities.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are further classified into the following categories:
financial assets at amortized cost, financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive mcome (FVOCI), financial asset or financial lability at fair value through
profit or loss (FVTPL), and other financial liabilities. RMF determines the classification
at 1mitial recognition and re-evaluates this designation at every reporting date, where
appropriate.
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Financial assets at amortized cost.

Fimancial assets at amortized cost are quoted or unquoted non-denvative financial assets
that have contractual terms that are consistent with the concept of SSPI and which fit the
business model of held-to-collect.

After mnitial measurement, these financial assets are carried at amortized cost less
allowance for expected credit losses and mmpairment. Amortized cost 1s determined using
the effective interest method, taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and the fees that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. Gams and losses are
recognized in the statement of income when the financial assets at amortized cost are
derecognized or impaired, as well as through the amortization process. Financial assets at
amortized cost are included i current assets 1if maturity 1s within twelve months from the
reporting date. Otherwise, they are classified as non-current assets.

Included in this category are RMF’s cash, loans recervable, and accounts recetvable.
Financial assets at F17OCT.

Fmancial assets at FVOCI includes quoted non-derwvative financial assets that have
contractual terms that are consistent with the concept of SSPI but do not fit the business
model of held-to-collect or held to maturity. These are recorded m the balance sheet at
fair value. Interest mcome 1s recognized m profit or loss and fair value changes are
recognized m other comprehensive mncome. Upon disposal, fairr value changes are
recycled to profit or loss.

Fmancial assets at FVOCI also includes equity instruments not held for trading and which
RMF opted not to designate as financial assets at FVITPL. These are recorded in the
balance sheet at fair value. Dividend income 1s recognized in profit or loss and fair value
changes are recognized m other comprehensive income. Upon disposal, there 15 no
recycling of fair value changes.

RMF has no financial assets at FVOCI as of reporting date.

Financial asset or financial babifity at F17TPL.

Fimancial assets at FVIPL are all financial assets whose contractual terms are not
consistent with the concept of SPPI, with the exception of equity nstruments not held
for trading which RMF opts to designate as financial assets at FVOCI without recycling,
Fmancial labilities at FVIPL are labilities acquired for the purpose of selling and
repurchasing in the near term or are those designated by RMF as such.

Fmancial assets and liabilities at FVTPL are recorded in the balance sheet at fair value.
Subsequent changes in fair value are recognized m profit or loss. Interest earned or
incurred 1s recorded as interest mcome or expense, respectively, while dividend income
1s recorded as other income when the night to recetve payment has been established.

RMF has no financial asset or financial hability at FVIPL as of reporting date.

Other financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities not designated as FVTPL are measured at cost or amortized cost using
the effective interest rate method. Amortized cost 1s calculated by taking into account any
discount or premmum on the 1ssue and fees that are an integral part of the effective interest
rate. The amortization 1s included in interest expense 1n the statement of comprehensive
NCOMme.

Included 1n this category 1s RMF’s accounts payable and accrued expenses, short-term
loans and members’ fund.

Reclassifications of Financial Instruments.

RMEF reclassifies its financial assets when, and only when, there 1s a change in the business
model for managing the financial assets. Reclassifications shall be applied prospectively
by RMF and any previously recognized gains, losses or interest shall not be restated.

RMF does not reclassify its financial assets when:

e A financial asset that was previously a designated and effective hedging
instrument in a cash flow hedge or net mvestment hedge no longer qualifies as
such;

¢ A financial asset becomes a designated and effective hedging instrument in a cash
tlow hedge or net investment hedge; and,

e There 15 a change in measurement on credit exposures measured at fair value
through profit or loss.

RMF does not reclassify its financial habilities.

Impairment of financial assets at amortized cost.

RMEF recognizes expected credit losses (ECL) for the following financial assets that are
not measured at FVTPL:

¢ Debt instruments that are measured at amortized cost and FVOCT,
* Loan commitments; and,
* [inancial guarantee contracts

No ECL 1s recognized on equity investments.
FECLs are measured 1n a way that reflects the following:

* an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that 1s determined by evaluating
a range of possible outcomes;

* the time value of money; and,

* reasonable and supportable information that 1s available without undue
cost or effort at the reporting date about past events, current conditions
and forecasts of future economic conditions.
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Financial assets migrate through the following three stages based on the change 1n credit
quality since 1mitial recogrition:

* Stage 1: 12-month ECL. For credit exposures where there have not been
significant mcreases m credit risk since tnitial recognition and that are not credit-
impaired upon orgination, the portion of lifetime ECLs that represent the ECLs
that result from default events that are possible within the 12-months after the
reporting date are recognized.

* Stage 2: Lifetime ECL - not creditimparred. For credit exposures where there
have been significant increases 1 credit risk since mnitial recognition on an
individual or collective basis but are not credit-impaired, lifetime ECLs
representing the ECLs that result from all possible default events over the
expected life of the financial asset are recognized.

* Stage 3: Lifetime ECL - credit-impaired. Financial assets are credit-imparred
when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future
cash flows of those financial assets have occurred. For these credit exposures,
lifetime ECLs are recognized and mterest revenue 1s calculated by applying the
credit-adjusted effective interest rate to the amortized cost of the financial asset.

Loss allowances are recognized based on 12-month ECL for debt mvestment securities
that are assessed to have low credit msk at the reporting date. A financial asset 1s
considered to have low credit risk if:

¢ the financial mstrument has a low risk of defaulg;

* the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow obligations
in the near term; or,

* adverse changes in economic and business conditions in the longer term may,
but will not necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual
cash flow obligations.

RMF considers a debt mnvestment secunity to have low credit risk when its credit risk
rating 1s equivalent to the globally understood defmnition of ‘investment grade’, or when
the exposure 1s less than 30 days past due.

Determination of the Stage for Impaivment. At each reporting date, RMF assesses whether
there has been a significant mcrease in credit risk for financial assets since 1mitial
recognition by comparing the risk of default occurring over the expected hife between the
reporting date and the date of imitial recognition. RMF considers reasonable and
supportable information that 1s relevant and available without undue cost or effort for
this purpose. This includes quantitative and qualitative information and forward-looking
analysis.

An exposure will migrate through the ECL stages as asset quality deteriorates. If, m a
subsequent period, asset quality improves and also reverses any previously assessed
significant increase in credit risk since ongination, then the loss allowance measurement

reverts from lifetime ECL to 12-month ECL.

Derecognition of Financial Assets and Tiabilities.

Financial assets.

A financial asset (o1, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar
financial assets) 1s derecognized where:

o the rights to recewe cash flows from the asset have expired;

¢ RMF retains the right to recewe cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an
obligation to pay them 1n full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-
through’ arrangement; or

¢ RMF has transterred its rights to recewe cash flows from the asset and either ()
has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) has
neither transterred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
but has transtferred control of the asset.

Where RMF has transterred its rights to recewe cash flows from an asset and has neither
transterred nor retained substantially all the nisks and rewards of the asset nor transferred
control of the asset, the asset i1s recognized to the extent of RMPF’s continuing
mnvolvement in the asset.

Fenancial babilitzes.

A financial liability 1s derecognized when the obligation under the lLability 1s discharged

or cancelled or expires.

Where an existing financial hability 1s replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified,
such an exchange or modification 1s treated as a derecognition of the original liability and
the recognition of a new lability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is
recognized through results of operations.

If, 1n a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after the mmpawrment was recognized, the
previously recognized mmpairment loss 1s reversed. Any subsequent reversal of an
unpairment loss 1s recognized through results of operations, to the extent that the carrying
value of the asset does not exceed its amortized cost at the reversal date.

Prepaid expenses.

Prepaid expenses are carried at the amounts paid and are amortized as they are used in
operations or as they expire with the passage of time.

Property and equipment.

Property and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses.
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Cost of property and equipment comprises its net purchase price and directly attributable
costs of bringing the asset to workmg condition for its intended use.

Subsequent expenditures that mmprove asset performance are capitalized. Other
expenditures are expensed.

Depreciation and amortization is computed on the straight-line method over the
estimated useful lives of the assets. Annual rates are as follows:

Annual rates (%)

Leasehold improvernents 10%
Furmiture, fixtures and equipment 20%
Motorcycle 20%
Computer and financial software 33%
Right of use asset 20% to 50%

The usetul lives of the assets and depreciation method used are reviewed periodically for
any significant change 1n utility of the assets and in the expected pattern of economic
benetits to ensure that current and future depreciation charges are adjusted accordingly.

Gain or loss on disposal or retirement of property and equipment are generally reflected
in the statement of operations.

At each reporting date, property and equipment are assessed for any indication of
inpairment 1n value based on internal and external sources. If any indication exists,
recoverable amount of the asset 1s estimated and an impairment loss 1s recognized
through results of operations.

Deferred credits.

Funds recetved that are restricted by the donors for specitic purposes are reported as
deferred credits. These are deemed donated and reported as mcome only upon the
occurrence of the events specified by donors.

Fund balance.

Cumulative excess of supports and other gains over expenses mncludes the current and
prior period results reported in the statements of operations.

Revenue and expense recogmition.
Revenues are recognized when it 1s probable that the economic benetits associated with

the transaction will flow to RMF and the amount of revenue can be reliably measured on
the following basis:

® Interests on loans are recognized on accrual basis using the effectve interest

method.

® [ees charged for servicing of loans are recognized when the service 1s provided.

10

o  Membership fees are recognized when a new member 1s admitted.

¢ Grants and sub-grants are recognized as receipts over pertods to match them with
the related costs which they are intended to compensate. Grants related to
depreciable assets are recognized as mcome over the periods and 1n proportion
in which depreciation on those assets 1s charged.

e Other income 1s recognized as earned.
Expenses are recognized when incurred.
Retirement benefits.

The net defined benefit liability or asset 1s the aggregate of the present value of the defined
benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period reduced by the fair value of plan
assets (1if any), adjusted for any effect of limiting a net defined benefit asset to the asset
cetling. The asset ceiling 1s the present value of any economic benefits available m the
form of retunds from the plan or reductions m future contrbutions to the plan.

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plans 1s actuarially determined
using the projected unit credit method.

Detined benefit costs comprise the following:

® Service cost
e Netnterest on the net defined benefit hability or asset

¢ Remeasurements of net defined benefit liability or asset

Service costs which include current service costs, past service costs and gains or losses
on non-routine settlements are recognized as expense in the statement of operations. Past
service costs are recognized when plan amendment or curtailment occurs. These amounts
are calculated periodically by independent qualified actuaries.

Net interest on the net defined benefit liability or asset 1s the change during the period
the net defined benefit hability or asset that arises from the passage of time which 1s
determined by applying the discount rate based on government bonds to the net defined
benefit hability or asset. Net interest on the net defmmed benefit lability or asset 1s
recognized as expense or income in the statement of operations.

Remeasurements comprising actuarial gains and losses and return on plan assets are
recognized tmmediately as other comprehensive income in the period m which they anise.
Remeasurements are not reclassified to statement of operations in subsequent periods.

Plan assets are assets that are held by a long-term employee benefit fund. Plan assets are
not available to the creditors of RMF, nor can they be paid directly to RMF. Fair value
of plan assets 1s based on market price information. When no market price 1s available,
the fair value of plan assets 1s estunated by discounting expected future cash flows using
a discount rate that reflects both the risk associated with the plan assets and the maturity
or expected disposal date of those assets (or, 1f they have no maturity, the expected period
until the settlement of the related obligations). If the fair value of the plan assets 1s higher

11
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than the present value of the defined benefit obligation, the measurement of the resulting
defined benefit asset 1s limited to the present value of economic benefits available 1n the
form of refunds from the plan or reductions m future contributions to the plan.

Leases.

RMF assesses whether a contract 1s, or contains, a lease at the imnception of the contract.
A contract 1s, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the night to control the use of
an 1dentifted asset for a period of tune n exchange for consideration. For leases, where
RMF acts as the lessee, RMF recognizes a nght-ofuse asset and a lease liability at the
commencement date of the lease. The nght-of-use asset 1s 1utially measured at cost,
which 1s comprised of the mitial amount of the lease lability with certain adjustments,
and subsequently depreciated using the straight line method, with depreciation expense
recognized in profit or loss. The lease liability 1s initially measured at the present value of
lease payments over the term of the lease using a discount rate that 1s based on the
prevailing borrowing rate. The discount rate 1s specific to each lease and 1s determined by
various factors, such as the lease term and currency. The lease term includes the non-
cancellable period and the optional period where 1t 1s reasonably certan we will exercise
of not exercise an extension or termination option, considering various factors that create
an economic mcentive to do so. Subsequently, the lease hability 1s measured at amortized
cost using the effective mnterest method, with interest charged to interest expense in profit
or loss. Lease liabilities and night-of-use assets are measured upon lease modifications.

Leases of low value assets or with relatively short terms are expensed when mecurred.
Provisions.

Provisions are recognized when RMF has a present obhgation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it 1s probable that an outflow of economic resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation. The expense relating to any provision 1s presented
in the statements of operations.

Contingencies.

Contingent labilities are not recognized in the financial statements but are disclosed
unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits 1s remote.
Contingent assets are not recognized but are disclosed 1n the financial statements when
an inflow of economic benefits 1s probable.

Events after reporting date.

Post year end events that provided additional mformation about RMF's position at

reporting date (adjusting events) are reflected in the financial statements. Post year end
events that are not adjusting events are disclosed when material.

12

Tudoments and Accounting Estimates.

In the process of applying the accounting policies of RMF, management has made following
judgments and estunates which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized
in the financial statements:

[udoments.

Provisions and contingencies.

RMF applies judgment on when to recognize provisions or contingent habilities. Provisions
are recognized when RMI has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, it 1s possible that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estumate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

Estimales and Assumblions

The key assumption concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the reporting date that have a significant nisk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

Allowance for expected credit losses.

ECLs are dertved from unbiased and probability-weighted estumates of expected loss, and are
measured as follows:

s Financial assets that ave not credit-impaired at the veporting date: as the present value of all cash
shortfalls over the expected life of the financial asset discounted by the effective mnterest
rate. The cash shortfall 1s the difference between the cash flows due to RMF in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that RMF expects to recewe.

»  Financial assets that are credit-impaived at the repoiting date: as the difference between the gross
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted by the
effective mterest rate.

o Undrann loan commitments: as the present value of the difference between the contractual
cash flows that are due to RMF 1f the commitment 1s drawn down and the cash flows
that RMF expects to recetve.

»  Financial guarantee sontracts: as the expected payments to reunburse the holder less any
amounts that RMF expects to recover.

RMF leverages existing risk management indicators (e.g. internal credit risk classification and
restructuning triggers), credit risk rating changes and reasonable and supportable information
which allows RMF to identify whether the credit risk of financial assets has significantly

increased.

Allowance for expected credit losses amounted to P155,879,966 and P61,553,574 as of
December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively. Loans and accounts recewables net of allowance for
expected credit losses amounted to P2,504941,427 and P1,698976,958 as of
December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively.
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Retivement benefits.

The determmation of the obligation and cost of pension 1s dependent on certain assumptions
used 1n caleulating such amounts. Those assumptions are described m Note 15 — Retirernent
benefits and include among others, discount rates and future salary increases. While
management believes that its assumptions are reasonable and appropriate, significant
differences in the actual expentence or significant changes m the assumptions may matenally
affect the pension and post-employment obligations. Retirement benefit expense amounted

to P18,801,141 and P8,500,484 m 2020 and 2019, respectively. Accrued retirement payable
amounted to P68,625,237 and P28,141,934 as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

Ulseful lives of property and equipmrent.

RMF estimates the useful lives of depreciable assets based on the period over which the assets
are expected to be available for use. The estimated useful lives of these assets are reviewed
annually and are updated if expectations differ from previous estimates due to physical wear and
tear and technical or commercial obsolescence. It 1s probable that the results of future operations
could be matenally affected by changes in the estimates due to changes in aforementioned
tactors. Reduction i estimated useful lives of depreciable assets would increase depreciation
expense and decrease non-current assets.

Carrying value of depreciable assets amounted to P204,047,499 and P135,581442 as of
December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

Lmpazrment of non-financial assets.

RMF assesses the wnpamment of non-financial assets whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. The
impatrment review requires an estimation of the present value of the expected tuture cash flows
trom continued use of the assets and selection of an appropmniate discount rate that can materally
affect the financial statements.

Carrying values of non-financial assets as of reporting date are as follows:

December 31 December 31

CASH

This account consists of:

December 31 December 31

2020 2019
Cash on hand P60,322,532 P41,867,260
Cash in barks 226,615,263 196,033,550

P286,937,795 P237,900,810

Cash on hand consists substantially of revolving funds and other cash funds.

Cash in banks earn interest at annual bank rates. Interest income earned from cash in banks

amounted to P5,004,184 and P4,044,323 1n 2020 and 2019, respectively.

LOANS RECEIVABLE

This account consists of:

December 31 December 31

2020 2019

Gross loans recetvable P2,568,499,399 P1,689,498,475
Less: Deferred loan interest income 842,169 745,829
Allowance for expected credit losses 155,879,966 61,553,574
156,722,135 62,299,403

P2,411,777,264  P1,627,199,072

2020 2019
Prepaid expenses and other current assets P27,246,022 P40,165,636
Property and equipment — net 204,047,499 135,581,442

Fair value of financial instruments.

PIRSs requires that certain assets and liabilities be carried at fair value which requires the use
of accounting judgment and estimates. While significant components of fair value
measurement are determined using verifiable objective evidence, the timing and amount of
changes m fair value would differ with the valuation methodology used. Any change in fair
value of these financial assets and liabilities would directly atfect results of operations or fund
balance. As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, fair value of financial assets amounted to
P2,791,879,222 and P1,936,877,768, respectively, and fair value of financial liabilities
amounted to P2,248,833,563 and P1,204,130,957, respectively.

14

Changes i allowance for expected credit losses were as follows:

2020 2019
Balance beginning P61,553,574 P46,450,538
Expected credit losses charged to operations (Note 11) 108,578,064 36,094,268
Written off (14,251,672) (20,991,232)
Balance end P155,879,966 61,553,574

The Philippine Finance Association (PFA) and the Microfinance Council of the Philippines,
Ine. (MCPI) requested for prudential accounting relief measures for licensed financing

companies (FCs) and lending companies (LCs), and accredited microfinance NGOs (MF-
NGOs).

Pursuant to R.A. No. 11494, Bayanihan to Recoveras One Act, the SEC 1s allowed to adopt

measures to enable companies to cope with the impact brought by Covid-19 pandemic. It s
of this purpose that the Commission en banc, i its meeting held on December 22, 2020,
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decided to provide relief to the subject mstitutions by allowing staggered booking of
provision for credit losses calculated m accordance with the requirements of Philippine
Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS), PFRS for Small and Medium-Sized Entities (SMEs),
or PFRS for Small Entities (SEs), as applicable, for annual period ending on or after
December 31, 2020 for a maximum period of five (5) years using straight-line amortization
method to be recognized in the profit or loss. FCs, LCs and MF-NGOs shall continue to

report actual past due and non-performing loans and provision for credit losses.

The financial statements have been modified by the application of the following financial
reporting rehief 1ssued and approved by the Secunties and Exchange Commussion 1n response
to the COVID-19 pandemic. The relief covers only current-year transactions/ events and
do notimpact the comparative period/s. (see Note 2)

Income from microfinance actrvities consists of as follows:

Advances to officers and employees include operational advances subject to liquidation.

Deposits recervable are rental deposits refundable to RMF at the end of the lease term.

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

As of December 31, 2020

2020 2019
Interest mcome earned from loans 881,878,406 966,345,167
Comrmission income 96,552,682 106,470,715
Service and general fees 19,759,668 7,535,657

P998,190,756  P1,080,351,539

Loans earn interest at annual rates ranging from 24.00% to 77.82% in 2020 and 2019. Interest
rates are based on loan type and term, which may range from three months to twelve months.

Commission mcome 1s mainly from the insurance coverage of the members.

Service and general fees, which are deducted from the loan proceeds, are charged at a rate of
1% of the loan amount mn 2020 and 2019, based on the loan type. Service charge 1s no longer
charged for Mauswagon and Kabuhayan loans effective December 3, 2018. New loan

products introduced m 2019 are also not charged with service charge.

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

This account consists of:

December 31 December 31

Furniture, Computer Right of
Leasehold fixtures and and financial use of
improvements equipment Motoreycele software (ROLT) assets Total
Cost
Balance, beginning P2,673,620 P92,706,438 P77.963,806 P28,404,440 P20,426,311 P222,174,615
Additions 195,317 375,142 24,532,059 69,587,806 — 24,690,324
Additions to ROU assets — — — — 48,897,362 48,897,362
Amortization . . . (30,628,225) (30,628,225)
Write-off — (8,084 — — (8,084)
Balance, end 2,868,937 93,073,496 102,495,865 97,992,246 28,695,448 il BgR s
Accumulated depreciation
Balance, beginning 1,874,156 43,143,490 30,100,021 6,475,500 — 86,593,173
Depreciation 408,576 1,358,608 16,157,565 26,568,655 — 44,493 404
Write-off — (8,084) — — — (8,084)
Balance, end 2,282 732 49,494 014 46,257 586 33,044,161 — 131,078 493
et book wvalue P536,205 43579 482 P56,238 279 P64,948 085 P38,695,448  D204,047 499
As of December 31, 2019
Furniture, Computer Right of
Leasehold fixtures and and financial use
improvements equipment Motoreycele software of assets Total
Cost
Balance, beginning P1,333,986 74,566,110 P5e,452.821 9,049,704 —  Pl143,402,621
Additions 1,581,614 24,437,936 22,494 244 22327 467 — 70,891,263
Adoption of FFRE 16 — — — — P42,616,298 42,616,298
Amortization — — — — (22,189,987) (22,189,987
Write-off (241,980 (6,347,608) (2,983,261} (2,972,731) — (12,545,580)
Balance, end 2,673,620 02,706,438 77,963,806 28,404,440 20,426,311 222,174,615
Accumulated depreciation
Balance, beginning 1,326,840 33,227 461 20,771,454 7,944,667 — 63,270,422
Depreciation 789,296 21,263,637 12,311,228 1,503,570 — 35,868,331
Write-off (241,980 (6,347,608) (2,983,261) (2,972,731) — (12,545,580)
Balance, end 1,874,156 48,143,490 30,100,021 6,475,506 — 86,593,173
et book value P799,464 F44.562 948 P47,863,735 P21,928934 P20,426,311 P135,581 442

2020 2019

Claimns receivable P66,368,728 P48,207,026
Accrued interest receivable 11,821,636 11,740,243
Advances to officers and employees 8,061,404 6,814,352
Deposits receivable 5,582,760 4,114,920
Recetvable from Sodal Security System 1,122,155 001,345
Other receivables 207,480 —=
P93,164,163 71,777,886

Claims recervable represents msurance claims that are not yet collected.

Accrued interest recervable pertains to the accrual of interest income on loans recervable.

16

Depreciation charged to operations amounted to P44,493 404 and 35,868,331 in 2020 and
2019, respectively. (see Note 11)

Amortization of night of use assets amounted to P30,628,225 and 22,189,987 1 2020 and
2019, respectively. (see Notes 11 and 20)

RMF has no idle property and equipment as of reporting date.
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ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED EXPENSES

This account consists of;

These are unsecured, clean loans. RMF was not in default on any of its loan commitments

throughout 2020 and 2019.

Interest expense from short-term loans amounted to 16,157,499 and P4,226 497 1n 2020
and 2019, respectively. (see Note 11)

December 31 December 31

2020 2019

Accounts payable and other current liabilities P105,286,305 P21,320,232
Lease liability (Note 20) 39,417,706 20,844,067
Emplovee bonds payable 18,307,046 13,083,472
Insurance payable 14,723,621 39,735,942
Loan redemption fund 13,248,164 1,572,568
Accrued interest payable 2,520,833 2,254,306
Accrued expense payable 166,454 19,013
Other payables 17,315,713 179,145
210,985,847 99,008,745

Less: Non-current portion of lease liability (14,031,292) (4,232,340)
P196,954,555 P94,776,405

MEMBERS FUND

Members with or without loan outstanding are required to make a weekly deposit of at least
fifty pesos (P50.00). Any amount of deposit in excess of 20% of the loan balance can be

withdrawn anytime. A member has the option to deposit more than the required balance.

Members’ fund earns interest at the rate of four percent (4%) per annum but was temporarily
suspended m 2020. Interest expense on members’ fund amounted to P9,918 and P16,856,560
in 2020 and 2019, respectively. (see Note 11)

Accounts payable and other current habilities mclude payable to other entity tor expenses

paid in behalf of RMF, suppliers” credits, and amounts due to government agencies.

Employee bonds payable 1s a security bond collected from trust staff and branch managers

to be refunded upon resignation.

Insurance payable represents insurance premium of members for their life insurance policy

for remittances to insurer.

Loan redemption fund 1s a percentage of amounts borrowed by the member, established to

serve as 4 security on loan principal in case of death of a borrower during the term of the

loan.

SHORT-TERM LOANS

These are loans from banks with terms ranging from two months to one year as follows:

Maturity December 31 December 31

Interest rate date 2020 2019

Union Bank of the Philippines (UBP) 5.75% 05/11/2021 P99.000,000 =
5.75% 05/10/2021 500,000,000 —

5.75% 03/02/2021 333,333,333 —

6.00% 03/02/2020 e P310,000,000

Land Bank of the Philippines (LBP) 5.00% 06/09/2021 200,000,000 —
5.00% 12/10/2021 200,000,000 —

5.00% 03/02/2020 — 145,000,000

Philippine National Bank (PNB) 5.75% 03/22/2021 100,000,000 -
6.50% 02/03/2020 — 50,000,000

P1.432,333 333 P505.000,000
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10.

OTHER SUPPORTS

RMTF 1s the recipient of the following grants and sub-grants:

2020 2019

Water Org. Inc. P838,011 P3,089,443
PhilPacific Insurance Brokers & Managers, Inc. 800,000 —
Grameen Foundation USA 50,000 —
Others 276,829 -
1,964,840 P3,089,443

On November 6, 2017, Water.org entered into a grant agreement with RMF for the
implementation of its new project called Water, Sanitation and Hygiene (WASH). Water.org
grants the total amount of $126,828 (the “Program Funds™) to RMF. The Program Funds
will be disbursed to RMF in amounts and tuning to be determimned at Water.org’s sole
discretion but may adjust its timing or amount based upon written request from RMF. The
Program Funds will be use by RMF for the mmplementation of sustainable water and
sanitation projects for health and environmental education, organization development, and
the introduction of potable water and sanitation. The agreement will expire on

February 28, 2021.

In 2020, RMF recewved a grant from PhilPacific Insurance Brokers & Managers, Inc.
(“Philinsure”) for the implementation of a project called Bugsay Scholarship Program. The
project shall establish a scholarship program for the children of RMF’s clients who meet the
criteria set by the Scholarship Program Commuittee. The scholarship shall cover the cost of
tuition and other school fees, academic and extracurricular expenses, purchase of textbooks,
board and lodging, transportation, clothing, medical needs and other valid related education
expenses and support services to complete the student-grantee’s degree program. The project
aims to provide scholarship to a total of ten (10) scholars per year over the course of ten (10)
years. Philinsure will provide RMF with a grant of P80,000 net of tax for each scholar per
year. This project has a duration of ten years subject to an annual evaluation. Both parties
shall have the option to continue the grant after each evaluation.
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RME also recetved a grant from Grameen Foundation USA in the amount of $1,000 for

Covid-19 response to enhance livelthoods of individual entrepreneurs and families.

Other grants substantially consist of Covid-19 related donations.

11.

EXPENSES FOR MICROFINANCING ACTIVITIES

This account consists of:

Client retention consist of:

2020 2019
Personnel management P626,488,599 P482,871,559
Branch expenses 130,271,852 163,837,330
Expected credit losses (Note 4) 108,578,064 36,094,268
Depreciation (Note 6) 44,493,404 35,868,331
Amortization (Notes 6 and 20) 30,628,225 22,189,987
Interest expense (Notes 8, 9, and 20) 17,995,976 22,216,726
Client retention 16,375,387 22,725,839
Fixed asset managernent 7,117,986 6,587,254
981,949,493 P792,391,294
Personnel management consists of:
2020 2019
Salaries and wages P537,016,852 P421,011,960
Retirement benefits expense (Note 15) 18,801,141 8,500,484
Other employee benefits 70,670,606 53,359,115
P626,488,599 P482,871,559
Branch expenses consists of:
2020 2019
Finance charges P25,479,732 P15,496,402
Maintenance and office supplies 22,954,682 42,074,716
Gasoline and o1l 18,381,850 20,091,958
Utilities 15,897,745 15,751,255
Communications 11,648,142 11,748,786
Rent (Note 20) 10,226,241 14,669,157
Fare and toll fees 10,117,300 16,507,594
Freight and delivery expenses 2,851,553 2,081,860
Miscellaneous 12,714,607 25,415,601
P130,271,852 P163,837,329
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2020 2019
Client training and intervention 7,588,526 3,897,758
Advertising and promotions 6,931,724 790,476
Market research and development 1,124,253 2,043,891
Gifts and tokens 727,084 10,749,289
General assermnbly expenses 3,800 5,244,425
P16,375,387 P22,725,839
12. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
This account consists of:

2020 2019
Membership fees and dues P71,630,203 P1,704,442
Taxes and licenses 36,672,386 7,425,538
Professional fees 18,912,810 61,129,232
Contracted services 9,395,466 _—
Branch pre-operating expenses 1,871,939 946,113
Representation 526,381 5,087,162
Program monitoring and evaluation 830,088 7,054,807
Computerization project expense = 2,247,120
Miscellaneous 2,343,687 2,761,878
P141,433,050 88,356,292
Professional fees consists substantially of consultancy fees paid to a third party for process

review and improvement.

13. INCOME TAX

Republic Act No. 10693, provides that a duly registered and accredited NGO whose primary
purpose 1s microfinance and only on their microfinance operations catering to the poor and
low-income mdvidual in alignment with the main goal of the Act to alleviate poverty 1s
subject to a preferential tax treatment of 2% based on its gross receipts from microfinance
operations 1 lieu of all national taxes.

On March 21, 2019, the Microfinance NGO Regulatory Council (Council) 1ssued a certificate
of accreditation to RAFI Micro-Finance, Inc. (RMF). The certificate shall be valid for three
(3) years from the date of issuance unless earlier revoked by the Council. As such, RMF 1s
subject to the preferential tax rate of 2%.

Income tax expense amounting to P20,003,112 and P21,668,820 in 2020 and 2019,
respectively, represents 2% preferential tax on gross recepts of RMI.

Income tax payable amounting to P7,826,598 and P6,528,157 as of December 31, 2020 and

2019, respectively, represents the current mcome tax net of income tax credits.
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14. COMPENSATION OF KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

The members of the Board of Trustees do not recerve any compensation from RMF.

The aggregate compensation and benefits paid to key management personnel were as follows:

2020 2019
Short-term employee benefits P48,250,828 P30,067,024
Post-employment benefits 3,668,550 1,894,222

i

RETIREMENT BENEFITS

RMF has a non-contributory benefit plan providing for retirement, death and disability
benefits to permanent and regular employees. Retirement benefits under the plan 1s equal to
100% of final monthly salary for every year of service for services rendered prior to January
1, 2006 and 150% of final monthly salary for every year of service rendered starting January
1, 2006.

Components of accrued retirement obligation recognized in the balance sheet and retirement
cost recognized in the statement of operations, and actuamal loss recognized in other
comprehensive income (OCI) are as follows:

2020 2019
Retirement cost
Current service cost P17,379,973 8,093,835
Net interest cost 1,421,168 406,649
Retirement benefits expense imcluded in personmnel
management (Note 11) 18,801,141 8,500,484
2020 2019
Curnulative actuarnal gain (loss)
Balance, beginning 8,293,532 P37,713,903
Actuarial loss for the year (37,710,578) (29,420,371)
Balance, end (29,417,046) P8,293,532
2020 2019
Assumptions used to determine retirement benefits
Discount rate 4.09% 5.05%
Rate of salary increase 6.00% 6.00%

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on reasonably possible changes of
each significant assumption on the accrued retirement obligation as of December 31, 2020,

assuming all other assumptions were held constant:

Effect on 2020 accrued

retirernent payable

Change in discount rates

1% increase (P19,573,740)

1% decrease 24,261,091
Change in salary rate increase

1% 1increase 24,178,404

1% decrease (19,879,917)

2020 2019
Changes in present value of obligation
Balance, January 1 P73,096,150 P35,256,408
Current service cost 17,379,973 8,093,835
Interest cost 3,691,356 2,947 436
Withdrawals (6,424,521 =
Actuanal loss 36,123,677 26,798,471
Balance, December 31 123,866,635 73,096,150
Changes in fair value of plan assets
Balance, January 1 44,954,216 30,392,186
Interest incomne 2,270,188 2,540,788
Contributions 16,028,415 14,643,142
Withdrawals (6,424,521 =
Actuanal loss (1,586,900) (2,621,900)
Balance, December 31 55,241,398 44,954,216
Liability recognized in balance sheet 68,625,237 P28,141,934
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10.

PERFORMANCE STANDARDS

As required under the Regulatory Framework for Microfinance Institutions, a common set
of performance standards for all institutions engaged 1n microfinance was formulated to allow
greater transparency in the operations of MFTs.
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The performance standards of RMF as of and for the years then ended calculated based on
the Regulatory Framework for Microfinance Institution are as follows:

risk. The Board of Trustees has set policies on management of each of these risks and has
appomnted a committee to implement the policies and monitor compliance thereot.

Credit visk.

Credit risk 1s the risk that one party of a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the

other party by failling to discharge an obligation.

The lending policies of RMF include among others that all loan applicants be required to
make a weekly deposit which earns interest if member 1s active, and a loan redemption fund
deducted from proceeds of the loan to serve as a security on the principal in case of death of
a borrower. The Credit Commuittee undertakes the implementation of credit policies and
monitors loans recevable on an ongoing basis to minimize exposure to bad debts. Loans

recetvable net of allowance amounted to P2,411,777,264 and P1,627,199,072 as of
December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

RMF’s exposure to credit risk from other financial assets which comprises cash 1s mitigated
by mamntainmg depository accounts and cash investments with financial institutions of high
credit rating. Furthermore, the Board of Trustees sets limits on deposits that could be placed
with a single mstitution. Cash amounted to P286,937.795 and P237,900,810 as of
December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively

The credit quality per class of financial assets that was neither past due nor umpaired 1s as

follows:
December 31, 2020
Neither past due nor impaired Past due or
High Medium Low Impaired Total
Financial assets at
amortized cost
Cash P256,937,795 — — — P256,937,795
Loans receivable — P2,371,595,008 — P196,204,301 2,568,499,399
Accounts receivable — 03,164,163 — — 093,164,163
P2586,937,795 P2,464,759,201 — P196,904,301 P2.948,601,357

December 31, 2019

Neither past due nor impaired Past due or

2020 2019
Portfolio quality
Portfolio at risk 8% 3%
Loan loss reserve 80% 102%
Efticiency
Administrative efficiency 51% 58%
Operational self-sufficiency 81% 110%
Loan officer productivity 269 196
Sustamability
Financial selt-sufficency 89% 119%
Loan portfolio profitability (6%) 14%
Outreach
Growth m number of active MF clients 31% 16%
Growth in microfinance loan portfolio 52% 23%
Depth of cutreach 19% 13%
17. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
The primary objective of RMF 1n managing capital 1s to ensure RME's ability to continue as
a going concern so that RMF can continue to support its projects and programs and thus
achieve the purpose for which it was created.
RMF manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in
economic condition. To mamtain or adjust capital, RMFEF may assess its members or sell its
assets to reduce debt. No changes were made 1n the objective, policy or processes 1n 2020
and 2019.
RMF considers fund balance as capital. Fund balance amounted to P697,887,345 and
P875,823,/98 as of December31,.2020 and.2019; respectively.
18. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
RMF’s prineipal financial mstruments comprise of cash, loans recervable, accounts recervable,
accounts payable and accrued expenses, short-term loans, and members” fund.
The carrying value of RMF’s financial asset and financial liabilities approximates fair value
due to their relatively short term maturities.
19. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES AND OBJECTIVES

The financial assets and fmancial labilities of RMF comprise of cash in banks, loans
recetvable, accounts recetvable, accounts payable and accrued expenses, short-term loans, and
members’ fund. The main nisks ansing from these instruments are credit risk and liquidity

24

High Medium Low Impaired Total
Financial assets at
amortized cost
Cash P237 900,810 — — — P237 900,810
Loans receivable — P1,635,890,082 — P53,608,393 1,689,498,475
Accounts receivable — 71,777,886 — — 71,777,886
P237 900,810 P1,707,667,968 — P53,608,393 P1,999.177.171
25
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Aging analysis per class of financial assets that were past due but not impaired and impaired
were as follows:

December 31, 2020

90 Ower 90 less Owver
days or less than 1 year 1 year Impaired Total
Loans receivable P32,352,939 P137,340,502 P27,210,860 s P195,904,301
December 31, 2019
a0 Owver 90 less Ower
days or less than 1 year 1 year Impaired Total
Loans receivable P12,942 817 P25,822,802 P14,842,774 = P53,608,393

Liguidity visk.

Liquidity risk 1s the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations
associated with financial liabilities that are settled by delwering cash or another financial asset.

RMF 1s exposed to daily calls on its available cash resources from its members’ funds and
loan draw downs. [t maintains sufficient cash at each operating unit to cover withdrawals at
unexpected levels of demand.

To manage this risk, RMF regularly monitors its projected and actual cash flows information
and, 1f necessary, obtains additional short-term funding from banks.

As of reporting date, the RMP’s accounts payable and accrued expenses, short-term loans,
and members’ fund are payable within one year and their carrying values are equal to their
total contractual undiscounted payments.

As of reporting date, the RMF's cash, loans recetvable, and accounts recervable are collectible
within one year and their carrying values are equal to therr total contractual undiscounted
collections.

Tnterest rate risk.

Floating rate financial instruments are subject to cash flow interest rate risk while fixed rate
financial instruments are subject to fair value rate nisk.

Cash flow interest rate risk 1s the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rate. Fair value interest rate risk 1s the risk
that the fair value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in market interest
rate.

RMF’s exposure to market risk for changes in mterest rates relates prumarily to its short-term
loans.

26

The following table sets out the carrying amount, by maturity, of RMFs financial instruments
that are exposed to interest rate risk:

As of December 31, 2020

< 1 year 1 to 5 years = 5 years Total
Short-term loans P1,432,333,333 - __ P1,432,333,333
As of December 31, 2019

< 1 year 1 to 5 years > 5 years Total
Short-term loans P505,000,000 — —_ P505,000,000

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change 1 mterest
rates, with all other variables held constant, of RMIs profit before tax:

Increase (decrease)
in basis points

Increase (decrease) i
profit before tax

December 31, 2020 100 (P5,755,620)
(503 2,877,810
Decemnber 31, 2019 100 (830,833)
(50) 415,417
20. LEASES

RMF leases its otfice and branch premuses from third parties for a term rangmg from one (1)
year to ten (10) years renewable upon mutually acceptable terms.

Set out below are the carrying amounts of RMF’s right-of-use assets and lease liabilities and
the movements during the year:

December 31, 2020

Right-of-use asset Lease liability

(Note 6) (Note 7)

As at January 1 P20,426,311 20,844,067
Additions 48,897,362 48,897,362
Amortization (30,628,225) =
Interest = 1,828,559
Payments — (32,152,282)
As at December 31 P38,695,448 P39,417,706
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December 31, 2019

Right-of-use asset Lease hability

(Note 6) (Note 7)

As at January 1 - _—
Additions P42,616,298 P42,616,298
Amortization (22,189,987, =
Interest = 1,133,669
Payments — (22,905,900}

As at December 31 P20,426,311 P20,844,067

branch expansion mitiatives which resulted to a higher personnel costs and salaries which
were still grven throughout the community quarantine period.

Portfolio at risk at the end of the year 1s at 7.6%. The loan portfolio 1s covered with an
allowance for expected credit losses of P156 mullion. RMF focuses on nitiatives that would
impact on the improvement of the loan portfolio quality.

RMF is continuously providing interventions to clhients particularly those with diminished or
no family mncome, transferred residence, and unstable businesses.

The carrying amounts of RMPF’s night-of-use asset as of December 31, 2020 and 2019 are
presented as part of property and equipment. (see Note 6)

Set out below are the amounts recognized in the statements of comprehensive mncome:

2020 2019

22,

NOTES TO CASH FLOWS

Non-cash transactions include recognition of night of use asset and lease hability amounting

to P48,897,362 and P42,616,298 1n 2020 and 2019, respectively.

Amortization expense of rnight of use assets (Note 6 and 11)

P30,628,225 P22,189,987

23:

RECLASSIFICATION OF ACCOUNTS

Certain accounts in the 2019 financial staternents were reclassified to conform with the 2020
presentation.

Rent expense — short-term leases (Note 11) 10,226,241 14,669,157
Interest expense on lease hiability (Note 11) 1,828,559 1,133,669
P42,683,025 37,992,813

The future minimum rental payments per contract provisions are as follows:
December 31 December 31
2020 2019
Within one year 26,717,534 P17,487,908
More than cne year but less than 5 years 14,582,410 4,232,340

24.

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements of RMF as of and for the year ended December 31, 2020 (including

the comparatives for the year ended December 31, 2019) were authornized for 1ssue by the
Board of Trustees on ___, 2020,

21

IMPACT OF COVID-19 PANDEMIC ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

With the outbreak of the 2019 Novel Corona Virus Acute Respiratory Disease, now known
as COVID — 19, the Philippine government has been undertaking measures to contain its
spread by mposing commumty quarantine and protocols that include compliance of
minimum public health standards, strict home quarantine, prohibition of mass gatherings,
suspension of face to face or in person classes at all levels, suspension of public transportation
and strict regulation of operating businesses, among others. No economic activities were
allowed during enhanced commumty quarantine (ECQ) except those involved in the
provision of essential goods and services. Depending on industry classification, some
businesses were allowed to operate partially or i full during modified enhanced community

quarantine (MECQ) and general community quarantine (GCQ).
RMF’s income from microfmancing activities decreased due to the suspension of operations

caused by the commumnity quarantines and the availment of the borrowers of the grace period
provided by Bayanthan 1 and 2. Expenses for microfinancing activities increased due to

28

25:

SUPPLEMENTARY TAX INFORMATION

Revenue Regulation No. 15-2020.

RMF reported the following tax types:

W ithholding fasces
Amount
Compensation 120,879,235
Expanded 10,569,117
P31,448,352
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Other taxes and fcernses

Amount

Documentary stamps tax P24,668,817
Busimess permit and other fees 8,161,536
Vehicle registration 3,757,759
Commurty tax 55,134
BIR annual registration 29,140
P36,672,386

Revenue Regulation No. 34-2020.

RMF 1s not covered by the requirements and procedures for related party transactions

provided under Revenue Regulation No. 34-2020.

—000—
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